DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO EL CAJON, CALIFORNIA

AUDIT REPORT

JUNE 30, 2013

Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP CPAs and Advisors 218 W. Douglas Ave El Cajon, CA 92020



Dehesa School District Audit Report For The Year Ended June 30, 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>	Exhibit/ I able
FINANCIAL SECTION		
Independent Auditor's Report	1	
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information)	4	
Basic Financial Statements		
Government-wide Financial Statements:		
Statement of Net Position	11	Exhibit A-1
Statement of Activities	12	Exhibit A-2
Fund Financial Statements:		
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds	13	Exhibit A-3
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds		
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position	14	Exhibit A-4
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in		
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds	15	Exhibit A-5
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in		
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	16	Exhibit A-6
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds		Exhibit A-7
Notes to the Financial Statements		
Required Supplementary Information:		
Budgetary Comparison Schedules:		
General Fund	33	Exhibit B-1
Schedule of Funding Progress - Retiree Healthcare Plan	34	
Notes to Required Supplementary Information		
Notes to Hequired Supplementary Information	33	
Combining Statements as Supplementary Information:		
Combining Balance Sheet - All Nonmajor Governmental Funds	36	Exhibit C-1
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in		
Fund Balances - All Nonmajor Governmental Funds	37	Exhibit C-2
Special Revenue Funds:		
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds	38	Exhibit C-3
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes		
in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds	40	Exhibit C-4
Capital Projects Funds:		
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds	42	Exhibit C-5
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes		
in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds	43	Exhibit C-6

Dehesa School District Audit Report For The Year Ended June 30, 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		<u>Page</u>	Exhibit/Table
Э	THER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION		
	Local Education Agency Organization Structure	44	
	Schedule of Average Daily Attendance	45	Table D-1
	Schedule of Instructional Time	46	Table D-2
	Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis	47	Table D-3
	Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report		
	With Audited Financial Statements	48	Table D-4
	Schedule of Charter Schools	49	Table D-5
	Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards	- 50	Table D-6
	Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards	51	
	Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and		
	Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed		
	in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	52	
	Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal		
	Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133	54	
	Independent Auditor's Report on State Compliance	56	
	Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs	59	
	Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings	63	



Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP

CPAs and Advisors 218 W. Douglas Ave El Cajon, CA 92020

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees Dehesa School District El Cajon, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Dehesa School District ("the District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Dehesa School District as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note A to the financial statements, in 2013, Dehesa School District adopted new accounting guidance, Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63, *Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources*, *Deferred Inflows of Resources*, and Net Position. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information identified as Required Supplementary Information in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Dehesa School District's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. The accompanying other supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the State's audit guide, *Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies 2012-13*, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and other supplementary information are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and other supplementary information are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated January 30, 2014 on our consideration of Dehesa School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering Dehesa School District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wilkinson Habley King & Co., LLP El Cajon, California January 30, 2014

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS JUNE 30, 2013 UNAUDITED

This section of Dehesa School District's (the District) annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2013. Please read it in conjunction with District's financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. GASB No. 34 established financial reporting standards for state and local government, including cities, villages and special purpose governments.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

- Total Net Position was \$2,640,767 an increase of \$204,569 from prior year.
- Total Revenues were \$3,373,424, and total cost of basic programs was \$3,298,889.
- Revenues exceeded program costs by \$74,535.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of four parts - Management's Discussion and Analysis (this section), the Basic Financial Statement, Required Supplementary Information, and other Supplementary Information Section. The Basic Financials Statements present different views of the District as follows:

- The first two statements are district-wide combined Financial Statements that provide both short-term and long-term information about the District's overall financial status.
- The remaining statements are Fund Financials Statements that focus on individual parts
 of the District, reporting the District's operations in more detail than the district-wide
 statements.

The referenced financial statements also include *Notes* that explain some of the information in the statements and provide more detailed data. The financial statements are followed by a section of *Required Supplementary Information* that further explains and supports the financial statements with comparisons of the District's budget and actual results for the year.

Below summarizes the major features of the District's financial statements, including a portion of the district's activities they cover and the types of information they contain.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) JUNE 30, 2013

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Major Features of the District-wide Financial Statements and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Statements							
	District-Wide	Governmental Funds					
Scope	Entire District, except fiduciary activities	The activities of the District that are not proprietary fiduciary, such as special education and building maintenance					
Required financial statements	Statement of Net Position	Balance Sheet					
	Statement of Activities	Statement of Revenue, Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balances					
Accounting basis and measurement focus	Accrual accounting and economic resources focus	Modified accrual accounting and current financial resources focus					
Type of asset/liability	All assets and liabilities, both financial and capital, short-term and long-term	Only assets expected to be used up and liabilities that come due during the year or soon thereafter; no capital assets included					
Type of inflow/outflow information	All revenues and expenses during year, regardless of when cash is received or paid	Revenues for which cash is received during or soon after the end of the year; expenditures when goods or service have been received and payment is due during the year or soon thereafter					

The remainder of this overview section of Management's Discussion and Analysis highlights the structure and contents of the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) JUNE 30, 2013

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

District-Wide Statements

The two District-Wide Statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the District's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in The Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

- 1) Net position (the difference between the District's assets and liabilities, see Table 1) is one way to measure the district's financial health or position
 - Over time increases and decreases in .the District's net position is an indicator of whether financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.
 - To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional non-financial factors such as change in the district's property tax base and the condition of school buildings and other facilities.
- 2) The District's activities are represented in the district-wide financial statements.
 - District's Activities All of the district's basic services are included, such as regular and special education, transportation, and administration. Property taxes and state formula aid finance most of these activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financials Statements provide detailed information about the District's specific funds - not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and related spending on particular programs:

- Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.
- The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (like repaying any long-term debt) or to show that it is properly using certain revenues (like Federal grants).

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) JUNE 30, 2013

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The District has Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds, which generally focus on (1) how cash, and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash, flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending, Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the district's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net Assets. The District's combined net position as of June 30, 2013, was \$2,640,767. (See Table A-1.)

Table A-1								
Condensed Statement of Net Position								
June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012 \$								
Current & Other Assets	\$4,729,745	\$1,794,701	\$2,935,044					
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation	\$ 958,983	\$1,046,838	\$ (87,855)					
Total Assets	\$5,688,728	\$2,841,539	\$2,847,189					
Current Liabilities	\$ 235,949	\$ 366,348	\$ (130,399)					
General Long-Term Debt	\$2,812,012	\$ 38,993	\$2,773,019					
Total Liabilities	\$3,047,961	\$ 405,341	\$2,642,620					
,								
Net Position								
Invested in Capital Assets		\$1,046,838	\$(1,046,838)					
Restricted	\$ 287,832	\$ 719,085	\$ (431,253)					
Unrestricted	\$2,352,935	\$ 670,275	\$ 1,682,266					
Total Net Position	\$2,640,767	\$2,436,198	\$ 204,569					

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) JUNE 30, 2013

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Assets. The District's total revenue was \$3,373,424. (See Table A-2). The total cost of all programs and services was \$3,298,889. Total expenses surpassed revenue by \$74,535.

Table A-2										
Condensed Sta	Condensed Statement of Activities									
	June 30, 2013	June 30,2012	Difference							
Revenues										
Program Revenues										
Charges for Services	\$ 26,789	\$ 22,249	\$ 4,540							
Operating Grants and Contributions	\$1,401,616	\$1,498,984	\$ (97,368)							
Capital Grants and Contributions	\$ 0	\$ 0	\$ 0							
General Revenues										
Revenue Limit Sources	\$ 863,433	\$1,166,921	\$ (303,488)							
Federal & State Revenue	\$ 757,616	\$ 443,568	\$ 314,048							
Local Revenue	\$ 323,970	\$ 190,964	\$ 133,006							
Total Revenues	\$ 3,373,424	\$3,322,686	\$ 50,738							
Expenses										
Instruction	\$1,951,672	\$2,188,691	\$ (237,019)							
Instruction-Related Services	\$ 263,222	\$250,658	\$ 12,564							
Pupil Services	\$347,640	\$335,478	\$ 12,162							
General Administration	\$384,143	\$364,909	\$ 19,234							
Plant Services	\$245,706	\$243,254	\$ 2,452							
Other Outgo	\$7,212	\$ 0	\$ 7,212							
Interest on Long-Term Debt	\$99,294	\$ 0	\$ 99,294							
Total Expenses	\$3,298,889	\$3,382,990	\$ 84,101							
Change in Net Assets	\$74,535	(\$60,304)	\$ 134,839							

Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities categorizes the activities presented in Table A-2 by revenue source:

- The cost of all governmental activities this year was \$1,870,484.
- Revenues from users of the District's programs amounted to \$26,789.
- Federal and state Governments subsidized programs contributions was \$1,401,616.
- Revenue from Revenue Limit sources was \$863,433.
- Local and miscellaneous revenues account for \$323,970.
- Net position increased by \$74,535.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) JUNE 30, 2013

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. The District closed fiscal year 2012 - 2013 with a total combined, government fund balance of \$4,324,824.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the Board approves five versions of the operating budget. These budget revisions fall into the categories of Preliminary, Adopted, First Interim, Second Interim, and Final Adopted.

Major budget amendments in revenue for the year include changes in Revenue Limit to LCFF: Federal Grants such as IDEA Special Ed., Title I, Safe and Drug Free Schools; state amounts such as Special Education, EIA, and Lottery.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

Capital assets (net of depreciation) are at \$958,983. These assets include Land, Land Improvement, Building Construction and Equipment. Total depreciation expense for the year was \$145,401. Total new assets purchased during the year were \$57,546, and consisted of computer equipment and work in process for new construction.

Table A-4									
Capital Assets									
June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012 \$ Change									
Work in Progress	\$ 24,634	\$ 0	\$ 0						
Land	\$ 3,000	\$ 3,000	\$ 0						
Buildings	\$ 2,059,265	\$ 2,040,732	\$ 18,533						
Land Improvements	\$ 9,900	\$ 9,900	\$ 0						
Equipment	\$ 694,221	\$ 679,843	\$ 14,378						
Less: Accumulated Depreciation	(\$1,832,037)	\$(1,686,637)	\$(145,401)						
Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation	\$ 958,983	\$ 1,046,838	\$(87,855)						

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) JUNE 30, 2013

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (CONTINUED)

Long-Term Debt

Table A-5								
Long Term Debt								
June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012 \$ Change								
Compensated Absences	\$ 45,061	\$ 38,993	\$ 6,068					
GO Bonds	\$ 2,499,852	\$ 0	\$ 2,499,852					
Accreted Interest	\$ 3,672	\$ 0	\$ 3,672					
Net OPEB Obligation	\$ 47,061	\$ 0	\$ 47,061					
Bond Premium	\$ 216,366	\$ 0	\$ 216,366					
Total Long Term Debt	\$ 2,812,012	\$ 38,993	\$ 2,773,019					

FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT'S FUTURE

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the only known circumstances that could significantly affect its financial health in the future would be an increase in the number of Special Needs students and associated special education costs, the State's continuing economic decline, its impact on the State budget, and related reduced funding to the school district.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and creditors with a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Gary Hobelman, Business Manager, Dehesa School District, 4612 Dehesa Road, El Cajon, CA 92019.

Dehesa School District



DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICTSTATEMENT OF NET POSITION JUNE 30, 2013

ASSETS: Cash	\$	3,624,915
Accounts Receivable	φ	888,464
Prepaid expenses		216,366
Capital Assets:		210,000
Land		3,000
Land Improvements		9,900
Buildings		2,059,265
Equipment		694,221
Work in Progress		24,634
Less Accumulated Depreciation		(1,832,037)
Total Assets		5,688,728
	2011	
LIABILITIES:		
Accounts Payable		235,949
Long-Term Liabilities:		
Due Within One Year		132,273
Due in More Than One Year		2,676,067
Accreted interest		3,672
Total Liabilities		3,047,961
NET POOLTION		
NET POSITION: Restricted for:		
Capital Projects		24,634
Debt Service		1,089,818
Educational Programs		937,043
Other Purposes (Expendable)		301,440
Other Purposes (Nonexpendable)		287,832
Unrestricted		
Total Net Position	\$	2,640,767

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

										Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in
					<u> </u>	rogram Reve	nue			Net Position
<u>Functions</u>		Expenses		Charges for Services		Operating Grants and Contributions		Capital Grants and Contributions		Governmental Activities
Governmental Activities: Instruction Instruction-Related Services: Instructional Supervision	\$	1,951,672	\$	-	\$	1,045,363	\$	-	\$	(906,309)
and Administration Instructional Library, Media		28,293		-		28,572		-		279
and Technology		15,393		-		-		-		(15,393)
School Site Administration Pupil Services: Home-to-School Trans-		219,536		-		28,182		-		(191,354)
portation		123,416		-		78,957		-		(44,459)
Food Services		78,020		26,789		57,809		-		6,578
All Other Pupil Services General Administration:		146,204		-		85,520		-		(60,684)
Centralized Data Processing All Other General		2,146		-				-		(2,146)
Administration		381,997		-		42,812		-		(339,185)
Plant Services		245,706		-		- 24 400		-	_	(245,706)
Enterprise Activities Other outgo		- 7,212		-		34,400 1		-		34,400 (7,211)
Interest on Long-Term Debt		99,294		_		-		-		(99,294)
Total Expenses	\$	3,298,889	\$	26,789	\$	1,401,616	\$	-	- s	(1,870,484)
		ral Revenues								
		Taxes Levied Taxes Levied	fo fo fo	r General Purpo r Debt Service r Other Purpose	es	- O'5'- D				766,124 97,386 (77)
				Aid Not Restric	tea to	o Specific Pro	gra	ıms		757,616
		erest and inv eragency Re		ment Earnings						13,255 243,860
		scellaneous	VGI	lues						243,000 66,855
	14114		era	al Revenue					\$_	1,945,019
		Cha	ang	e in Net Positio	n					74,535
	Adjus Net P	_	inni nin	g ing Balance (No g as Adjusted	ote C))			- \$	2,436,198 130,034 2,566,232 2,640,767

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICTBALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS JUNE 30, 2013

100570		General Fund		Building Fund	G	Other Governmental Funds	G 	Total lovernmental Funds
ASSETS: Cash in County Treasury	\$	416,691	\$	2,506,072	\$	693,493	\$	3,616,256
Cash on Hand and in Banks	Ψ	1,055	Ψ	-	Ψ	1,599	Ψ	2,654
Cash in Revolving Fund		6,005		-		-		6,005
Accounts Receivable		882,319		1,983		4,161		888,463
Due from Other Funds		174,662		-		33,300		207,962
Total Assets		1,480,732		2,508,055		732,553		4,721,340
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:						•		
Liabilities:								
Accounts Payable	\$	178,996	\$	-	\$	10,558	\$	189,554
Due to Other Funds		207,962		-		-		207,962
Total Liabilities	_	386,958		-		10,558		397,516
Fund Balance:		•						
Nonspendable Fund Balances:								
Revolving Cash		6,005		-		-		6,005
Restricted Fund Balances		287,832				13,716		301,548
Committed Fund Balances		-		2,508,055		692,675		3,200,730
Assigned Fund Balances Unassigned:		-		-		15,604		15,604
Reserve for Economic Uncertainty		799,937		-		-		799,937
Other Unassigned		-		-		-		-
Unassigned, reported in nonmajor:								
Special Revenue Funds		-		-		-		-
Debt Service Funds		-		-		-		-
Capital Projects Funds	***************************************	*		-		_		-
Total Fund Balance		1,093,774		2,508,055		721,995		4,323,824
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances	\$	1,480,732	\$	2,508,055	\$	732,553	\$	4,721,340

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION JUNE 30, 2013

Total fund balances, governmental funds

\$ 4,323,825

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net Position are different because:

Capital Assets: In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net position, all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation.

Capital assets relating to governmental activities, at historical cost:
Accumulated depreciation:

2,791,020 (1,832,037)

Net:

958,983

Unamortized costs: In governmental funds, debt issue costs are recognized as expenditures in the period they are incurred. In the government-wide statements, debt issue costs are amortized over the life of the debt. Unamortized debt issue costs included in prepaid expense on the statement of net position are:

216,366

Unmatured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is not recognized until the period in which it matures and is paid. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the period that it is incurred. The additional liability for unmatured interest owing at the end of the period was:

(46,396)

Long-term liabilities: In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the statement of net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported. Long-term liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of:

General obligation bonds	2,499,852
Accreted interest	3,672
Bond premium	216,366
Net OPEB obligation	47,061
Compensated absences payable	45,061

(2,812,012)

Total net position, governmental activities

2,640,766

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

		Other General Building Governmental Fund Fund Funds		Governmental		G	Total lovernmental Funds	
Revenues:								
Revenue Limit Sources:	_		_		_		_	
State Apportionments	\$	1,034,881	\$	-	\$	-	\$	1,034,881
Local Sources		153,406		- ′		-		153,406
Federal Revenue		547,791		-		53,549		601,340
Other State Revenue		391,497		-		5,629		397,126
Other Local Revenue		998,712		8,203		179,755		1,186,670
Total Revenues		3,126,287		8,203		238,933		3,373,423
Expenditures:								
Instruction		1,903,859		-		750		1,904,609
Instruction - Related Services		263,110		-		-		263,110
Pupil Services		212,084		-		134,097		346,181
General Administration		240,010		-		8,940		248,950
Plant Services		198,118		-		90,429		288,547
Debt Service:								
Interest		-		-		56,438		56,438
Total Expenditures		2,817,181		•		290,654		3,107,835
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues								
Over (Under) Expenditures		309,106		8,203		(51,721)	***************************************	265,588
Other Financing Sources (Uses):								
Transfers In		185,938		-		33,300		219,238
Transfers Out		(219,238)		-		-		(219,238)
Other Sources		-		2,499,852		-		2,499,852
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)		(33,300)		2,499,852		33,300		2,499,852
Net Change in Fund Balance		275,806		2,508,055		(18,421)		2,765,440
Fund Balance, July 1		817,968				740,416		1,558,384
Fund Balance, June 30	\$	1,093,774	\$	2,508,055	\$	721,995	\$	4,323,824

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Total change in fund balances, governmental funds

2,765,440

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Capital outlay: In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as expenditures in the period when the assets are acquired. In the statement of activities, costs of capital assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The difference between capital outlay expenditures and depreciation expense for the period is:

Expenditures for capital outlay Depreciation expense

57,546 (145,401)

Net:

(87,855)

Debt proceeds: In governmental funds, proceeds from debt are recognized as Other Financing Sources. In the government-wide statements, proceeds from debt are reported as increases to liabilities. Amounts recognized in governmental funds as proceeds from debt, net of issue premium or discount, were:

(2,499,852)

Unmatured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is recognized in the period it becomes due. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the period that it is incurred. Unmatured interest owing at the end of the period, less matured interest paid during the period but owing from the prior period, was:

(50,068)

Debt issue costs: In governmental funds, debt issue costs are recognized as expenditures in the period they are incurred. In the government-wide statements, issue costs are amortized over the life of the debt. The difference between debt issue costs recognized in the current period and issue costs amortized for the period is:

Issue costs amortized for the period

(7,213)

Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB): In governmental funds, OPEB costs are recognized when employer contributions are made. In the statement of activities, OPEB costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference between OPEB costs and actual employer contributions was:

(47,061)

Amortization of debt issue premium or discount: In governmental funds, if debt is issued at a premium or at a discount, the premium or discount is recognized as an Other Financing Source or an Other Financing Use in the period it is incurred. In the government-wide statements, the premium or discount is amortized as interest over the life of the debt. Amortization of premium or discount for the period is.

7,212

Compensated absences: In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the amounts paid during the period. In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amounts earned. The difference between compensated absences paid and compensated absences earned was:

(6,068)

Change in net assets of governmental activities - statement of activities

74,535

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS JUNE 30, 2013

	_	Agency Fund
ACCETC.	_	Student Body Fund
ASSETS: Cash on Hand and in Banks Total Assets	\$_ 	1,882 1,882
LIABILITIES: Due to Student Groups Total Liabilities	\$_ _	1,882 1,882
NET POSITION: Total Net Position	\$_	-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Dehesa School District (District) accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the policies and procedures of the Department of Education's "California School Accounting Manual". The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).

Reporting Entity

The District's combined financial statements include the accounts of all its operations. The District evaluated whether any other entity should be included in these financial statements. The criteria for including organizations as component units within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity," include whether:

- the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its name)
- the District holds the corporate powers of the organization
- the District appoints a voting majority of the organization's board
- the District is able to impose its will on the organization
- the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District
- there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the District

The District also evaluated each legally separate, tax-exempt organization whose resources are used principally to provide support to the District to determine if its omission from the reporting entity would result in financial statements which are misleading or incomplete. GASB Statement No. 14 requires inclusion of such an organization as a component unit when: 1) The economic resources received or held by the organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the District, its component units or its constituents; and 2) The District or its component units is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the organization; and 3) Such economic resources are significant to the District.

Based on these criteria, the District has no component units. Additionally, the District is not a component unit of any other reporting entity as defined by the GASB Statement.

2. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

a. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The District does not allocate indirect expenses in the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds, with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the District except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Facilities Fund. This fund is used to account for the acquisition of capital assets from the use of developer fees.

In addition, the District reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Capital Projects Funds: These funds account for the acquisition and/or construction of all major governmental general fixed assets.

Debt Service Funds. These funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Agency Funds: These funds are used to report student activity funds and other resources held in a purely custodial capacity (assets equal liabilities). Agency funds typically involve only the receipt, temporary investment, and remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Fiduciary funds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements. However, because their assets are held in a trustee or agent capacity and are therefore not available to support District programs, these funds are not included in the government-wide statements.

b. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: These financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. They are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The District does not consider revenues collected after its year-end to be available in the current period. Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized under the susceptible-to-accrual concept. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

When the District incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources may be used, it is the District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

3. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid. All encumbrances are liquidated as of June 30.

4. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

a. Deposits and Investments

Cash balances held in banks and in revolving funds are insured to \$250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institutions is fully insured or collateralized.

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all its cash in the San Diego County Treasury. The county pools these funds with those of other districts in the county and invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at cost, which approximates market value. Interest earned is deposited quarterly into participating funds, except for the Tax Override Funds, in which interest earned is credited to the general fund. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the pool.

The county is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section 53648 et seq. The funds maintained by the county are either secured by federal depository insurance or are collateralized.

Information regarding the amount of dollars invested in derivatives with San Diego County Treasury was not available.

b. Stores Inventories and Prepaid Expenditures

Inventories are recorded using the purchases method in that the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are purchased. These inventories are immaterial and have been omitted from these statements.

The District has the option of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for prepaid items either when purchased or during the benefiting period. The District has chosen to report the expenditure when incurred.

c. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of \$5,000 is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

	Estimated
Asset Class	Useful Lives
Buildings	25-50
Building Improvements	10-20
Vehicles	5-7
Office Equipment	3-15

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

d. Receivable and Payable Balances

The District believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is provided in the financial statements to avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is provided which disaggregates those balances.

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end.

e. Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as liabilities of the District. The amount is reported in the District's long-term debt.

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's policy is to record sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken since such benefits do not vest nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period for calculation of retirement benefits when the employee retires.

f. Deferred Revenue

Cash received for federal and state special projects and programs is recognized as revenue to the extent that qualified expenditures have been incurred. Deferred revenue is recorded to the extent cash received on specific projects and programs exceeds qualified expenditures.

g. Interfund Activity

Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers In and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single "Transfers" line on the government-wide statement of activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables are netted and presented as a single "Internal Balances" line of the government-wide statement of net position.

h. Property Taxes

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1. Taxes are payable in two installments on November 15 and March 15. Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 31. The County of San Diego bills and collects the taxes for the District.

i. Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain intact (such as notes receivable or principal of a permanent fund).

Restricted Fund Balance - represents amounts that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Committed Fund Balance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of a formal action by the District's governing board. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the governing board removes those constraints by taking the same type of formal action. Committed fund balance amounts may be used for other purposes with appropriate due process by the governing board. Commitments are typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. Committed fund balance amounts differ from restricted balances in that the constraints on their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation.

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which the District intends to use for a specific purpose, but that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent may be stipulated by the governing board or by an official or body to which the governing board delegates the authority. Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital projects, debt service or permanent fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type or the fund's primary purpose. Assignments within the general fund conveys that the intended use of those amounts is for a specific purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the District itself.

Unassigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for any purpose. Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental funds might report a negative balance in this classification because of overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned.

When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds.

i. Minimum Fund Balance

The District maintains a minimum reserve of 5% of general fund expenditures including other financing uses within the general fund. This reserve may be increased from time to time in order to address specific anticipated shortfalls. If necessary, The Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay may also be used to meet the minimum state required reserve level. The minimum reserve shall apply towards the established minimum Reserve for Economic Uncertainties or an amount that that meets or exceeds the requirements by law. The District is committed to maintaining a prudent level of financial resources to protect against the need to reduce service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted expenditures.

Because amounts in the nonspendable, restricted, committed, and assigned categories are subject to varying constraints in use, the Reserve for Economic Uncertainties consists of balances that are otherwise unassigned.

k. GASB 54 Fund Presentation

Consistent with fund reporting requirements established by GASB Statement #54, Fund 17 (Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay) is merged with the General Fund for purposes of presentation in the audit report.

I. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of management's estimates. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

m. GASB 63 Implementation

The District has implemented GASB Statement Number 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. The purpose of this pronouncement is to improve financial reporting by standardizing the presentation of deferred inflows and outflows of resources and their effects on a government's net position. Transactions that result in consumption or acquisition of net assets in one period that are applicable to future periods as deferred outflows and inflows of resources which are distinguished from assets and liabilities. Net position is the difference between 1) assets and deferred outflows of resources; and 2) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. For the year ended June 30, 2013 the District did not have any items which would be considered deferred outflows and inflows of resources.

B. Compliance and Accountability

1. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures," violations of finance-related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address such violations:

<u>Violation</u>

None reported

Action Taken

Not applicable

Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Assets of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net assets at year end, if any, along with remarks which address such deficits:

Fund Name Deficit
Amount Remarks
None reported Not applicable

Not applicable

C. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

As of June 30, 2013, expenditures exceeded appropriations in individual funds as follows:

Appropriations Category	Excess penditures
General Fund:	
Certificated salaries	\$ 29,000
Classified salaries	40,589
Employee benefits	41,369
Services and other operating expenditures	3,762
Capital outlay	14,379

D. Cash and Investments

1. Cash in County Treasury:

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of its cash in the San Diego County Treasury as part of the common investment pool (\$3,616,256 as of June 30, 2013). The fair value of the District's portion of this pool as of that date, as provided by the pool sponsor, was \$3,616,256. Assumptions made in determining the fair value of the pooled investment portfolios are available from the County Treasurer.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

2. Cash on Hand, in Banks, and in Revolving Fund

Cash balances on hand and in banks (\$4,536 as of June 30, 2013) and in the revolving fund (\$6,005) are insured up to \$250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institution is fully insured or collateralized.

3. Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the District was exposed to the following specific investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

a. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The county is restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest only in time deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer's investment pool, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to give an indication of credit risk. The San Diego County Investment Pool is rated AAAf by Standard & Poors.

b. Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the District's name.

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty's trust department or agent but not in the District's name. At year end, the District was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

c. Concentration of Credit Risk

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer. At year end, the District was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

d. Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing in the County Treasury. The District maintains an investment with the San Diego Investment Pool with a fair value of \$3,616,256 and a book value of \$3,616,256. The weighted average days to maturity for this investment pool is 370 days.

e. Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the District was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

4. Investment Accounting Policy

The District is required by GASB Statement No. 31 to disclose its policy for determining which investments, if any, are reported at amortized cost. The District's general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating interest-earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term "short-term" refers to investments which have a remaining term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparticipating" means that the investment's value does not vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts.

The District's investments in external investment pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value per share of the pool's underlying portfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-like, in which case they are reported at share value. A 2a7-like pool is one which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") as an investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.

E. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2013 consisted of:

	 General Fund	Special Revenue Funds	Capital Projects Funds	Total
Federal Government: Federal programs	\$ 220,320 \$	3,440 \$	-	\$ 223,760
State Government: Revenue Limit Lottery Other state programs	255,559 17,548 102,552	- - 276	- - -	255,559 17,548 102,828
Local Sources: Interest Other local sources Totals	\$ 497 285,843 882,319 \$	245 - 3,961_\$	2,177 - 2,177	2,919 285,843 \$888,457

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

F. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

	Beginning Balances	Increases		Decreases		Ending Balances
Governmental activities:			_			
Capital assets not being depreciated:						
Land	\$ 3,000 \$	-	\$	-	\$	3,000
Work in progress	11,934	12,700		-		24,634
Total capital assets not being depreciated	 14,934	12,700	_	-		27,634
Capital assets being depreciated:						
Buildings	2,028,798	30,467		-		2,059,265
Improvements	9,900	-		-		9,900
Equipment	679,842	14,379		-		694,221
Total capital assets being depreciated	 2,718,540	44,846	_	-		2,763,386
Less accumulated depreciation for:						
Buildings	(1,274,806)	(79,413)		-		(1,354,219)
Improvements	(9,900)	-		-		(9,900)
Equipment	(401,930)	(65,988)		-		(467,918)
Total accumulated depreciation	(1,686,636)	(145,401)		-		(1,832,037)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net	1,031,904	(100,555)		-		931,349
Governmental activities capital assets, net	\$ 1,046,838 \$	(87,855)	\$ <u>_</u>	-	_\$_	958,983

Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:

General Administration \$ 145,401 \$ 145.401

G. Interfund Balances and Activites

1. Due To and From Other Funds

Balances due to and due from other funds at June 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

Due To Fund	Due From Fund	 Amount	Purpose			
Child Development Fund	General Fund	\$ 3,300	Loan for payroll			
Deferred Maintenance Fund	General Fund	30,000	RRMA contribution			
Special Reserve Fund	General Fund	157,312	Oversight fees			
General Fund	Special Reserve Fund	17,350	Expense reimbursement			
	Total	\$ 207,962				

All amounts due are scheduled to be repaid within one year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

2. Transfers To and From Other Funds

Transfers to and from other funds at June 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

Transfers From	Transfers To	 Amount	Purpose
General Fund	Child Development Fund	\$ 3,300	Loan for payroll
General Fund	Deferred Maintenance Fund	30,000	RRMA contribution
General Fund	Special Reserve Fund	157,312	Oversight fees
Special Reserve Fund	General Fund	28,626	Expense reimbursement
•	Total	\$ 219,238	

H. Accounts Payable

Accounts payable at June 30, 2013 consisted of:

		General Fund		Special Revenue Funds		Capital Projects Fund		Total		
Vendor payables Payroll and related benefits Totals	\$ \$	163,163 15,833 178,996		14 535 549		10,009 - 10,009	·	173,186 16,368 189,554		

I. Long-Term Obligations

1. Long-Term Obligation Activity

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2013, are as follows:

	Beginning Balance		Increases		Decreases		Ending Balance	Amounts Due Within One Year
Governmental activities:								
General obligation bonds	\$ -	\$	2,499,852	\$	-	\$	2,499,852 \$	80,000
Accreted interest	-		3,672		-		3,672	-
Bond premium	=		223,578		7,212		216,366	7,212
Compensated absences *	38,993		6,068		-		45,061	45,061
Net OPEB obligation	-		47,061		-		47,061	-
Total governmental activities	\$ 38,993	\$_	2,780,231	\$ <u>_</u>	7,212	\$_	2,812,012 \$	132,273

^{*} Other long-term liabilities

The funds typically used to liquidate other long-term liabilities in the past are as follows:

Liability	Activity Type	Fund
Compensated absences	Governmental	General

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

2. Debt Service Requirements

Debt service requirements on long-term debt, net of bond premium and accreted interest, at June 30, 2013, are as follows

	 Governmental Activities						
Year Ending June 30,	Principal	Interest	Total				
2014	\$ 125,061 \$	109,388 \$	234,449				
2015	-	107,425	107,425				
2016	-	107,425	107,425				
2017	-	107,425	107,425				
2018	-	107,425	107,425				
2019-2023	110,000	528,125	638,125				
2024-2028	265,000	494,212	759,212				
2029-2033	403,552	430,124	833,676				
2034-2038	341,300	389,450	730,750				
2039-2043	1,030,000	216,038	1,246,038				
2044-2048	 270,000	7,088	277,088				
Totals	\$ 2,544,913 \$	2,604,125 \$	5,149,038				

3. General Obligation Bonds

General obligation bonds at June 30, 2013 consisted of the following:

	 Date of Issue		Interest Rate		Maturity Date		Amount of Original Issue
2010 Election Series A	08/01/2012	2	3.00-4.00%		08/01/2043	\$	2,499,852
	 Beginning Balance		Increases		Decreases	_	Ending Balance
2010 Election Series A	\$ -	\$	2,499,852	\$	-	\$	2,499,852
2010 Accreted Interest	-	_	3,672		-		3,672
Total GO Bonds	\$ -	_\$_	2,503,524	\$_	-	\$	2,503,524

The annual requirements to amortize the bonds outstanding at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

		Accreted		
Year Ending June 30,	Principal	Interest	Interest	Total
2014	\$ 80,000 \$	7,600 \$	109,388 \$	196,988
2015	-	8,255	107,425	115,680
2016	-	8,961	107,425	116,386
2017	-	9,735	107,425	117,159
2018	•	10,565	107,425	117,991
2019-2023	110,000	68,116	528,125	706,241
2024-2028	265,000	102,835	494,212	862,047
2029-2033	403,552	150,482	430,124	984,158
2034-2038	341,300	45,078	389,450	775,828
2039-2043	1,030,000	-	216,038	1,246,038
2044-2048	270,000	-	7,088	277,088
Totals	\$ 2,499,852 \$	411,627 \$	2,604,125 \$	5,515,604

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

J. Joint Ventures (Joint Powers Agreements)

The District participates in one joint powers agreement (JPA) entity, the San Diego County Schools Risk Management (SDCSRM). The relationship between the District and the JPA is such that the JPA is not a component unit of the District.

The JPA arranges for and provides for various types of insurances for its member districts as requested. The JPA is governed by a board consisting of a representative from each member district. The board controls the operations of the JPA, including selection of management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the member districts beyond their representation on the board. Each member district pays a premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to their participation in the JPA.

Combined condensed unaudited financial information of the District's share of the JPA for the year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows:

Total Assets	\$ (40,009)
Total Liabilities	1,353
Total Fund Balance	(41,362)
Total Cash Receipts	12,055
Total Cash Disbursements	9,191
Net Change in Fund Balance	2,864

The District has a repayment plan in place to repay the deficit balance at June 30, 2013.

K. Employee Retirement Systems

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), and classified employees are members of the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS).

PERS:

Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

Funding Policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 7% of their salary and the District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2012-13 was 11.417% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. The District's contributions to CalPERS for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were \$49,188, \$41,841 and \$41,195, respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions for each year.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

STRS:

Plan Description

The District contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by STRS. The plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. STRS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the STRS annual financial report may be obtained from the STRS, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento, California 95826.

Funding Policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 8% of their salary and the District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the STRS Teachers' Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2012-13 was 8.25% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. The District's contributions to STRS for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were \$74,321, \$74,741 and \$74,805, respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions for each year. The amount contributed by the State on behalf of the District was \$47,561.

L. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits

Plan Description

The Dehesa School District (District) offers health care benefits, as established by board policy, to all employees who retire from the District and meet established requirements. Currently, the District pays 100% of the cost of the premium. Based on the June 30, 2013 actuarial study the number of active employees was 25 with 2 retirees.

Contribution Information

The contribution requirements of Plan members and the District are established and amended by the District. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2012-13, the District contributed \$20,458 for health care benefits which represented 30.3% the annual required contribution.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The District's annual other post employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL) (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the Districts annual OPEB cost of the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan and changes in the District's net obligation to the Plan:

Annual required contribution	\$	67,519
Contribution made		(20,458)
Increase in net OPEB obligation	***************************************	47,061
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year		-
Net OPEB obligation, end of year	\$	47,061

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2013 was as follows:

	Annual			
Year Ended	Required	Percentage	Net OPEB	
June 30,	Contribution	Contributed	Obligation	
2013	\$67,519	30.3%	\$47,061	

Funding Status and Funding Progress

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and the Plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and Plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The District utilized the Alternative Measurement Method which differs from a full actuarial valuation and is permitted for employers with fewer than one hundred plan members, which includes employees in active service, terminated employees who have accumulated benefits but are not receiving them, and retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits. In the June 30, 2013 actuarial review under the Alternative Measurement Method, the actuarial cost method used was Projected Unit Credit with service prorate. Under this method, the Actuarial Accrued Liability is the present value of projected benefits multiplied by the ratio of benefit service as of the valuation date to the projected benefit service at retirement, termination, disability or death. The Normal Cost for a plan year is the expected increase in the Accrued Liability during the plan year. All employees eligible as of the measurement date in accordance with the provisions of the Plan listed in the data provided by the Employer were included in the valuation.

The UAAL is being amortized at a level dollar method with the amortization period at June 30, 2013 of 30 years.

M. Commitments and Contingencies

State and Federal Allowances, Awards, and Grants

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to view and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement will not be material.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

N. Subsequent Events

Effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013 the District is implementing GASB Statement Number 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. The purpose of this pronouncement is to improve financial reporting by clarifying the appropriate use of the financial statement elements of deferred inflows and outflows of resources to ensure consistency in financial reporting. With implementation of this pronouncement, the District will recognize certain items prevously reported as assets or liabilities as outflows of resources or inflows of resources.

O. Adjustment to Beginning Net Assets

An adjustment was made to the beginning net assets in the Government Wide Financial Statements in the amount of \$130,034 to account for the recognition of the Charter School Fund. Now that eAcademy charter school has been disolved the District is account for transactions associated with the charter school.

Net Assets, Beginning (As Originally Stated)	\$ 2,436,198
Adjustment for recognition of Charter School Fund	 130,034
Net Assets, Beginning (As Restated)	\$ 2,566,232

Required Supplementary Information	
Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures required by Accounting Standards Board but not considered a part of the basic financial statements.	the Governmental

EXHIBIT B-1

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revenues:	 Budgete Original	d A	mounts Final		Actual	-	Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative)
Revenue Limit Sources:							
State Apportionments	\$ 976,238	\$	976,238	\$	1,034,881	\$	58,643
Local Sources	129,131		129,131		153,406		24,275
Federal Revenue	389,375		389,375		547,791		158,416
Other State Revenue	350,088		350,088		391,497		41,409
Other Local Revenue	989,289		989,289		997,655		8,366
Total Revenues	 2,834,121	-	2,834,121	_	3,125,230	_	291,109
Expenditures: Current:							
Certificated Salaries	887,957		887,957		916,957		(29,000)
Classified Salaries	426,922		426,922		467,511		(40,589)
Employee Benefits	352,080		352,080		393,449		(41,369)
Books And Supplies	156,449		156,449		104,450		51,999
Services And Other Operating Expenditures	916,673		916,673		920,435		(3,762)
Capital Outlay	-		-		14,379		(14,379)
Total Expenditures	 2,740,081	-	2,740,081	_	2,817,181		(77,100)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues							
Over (Under) Expenditures	 94,040	_	94,040		308,049		214,009
Other Financing Sources (Uses):							
Transfers In	17,350		17,350		28,626		11,276
Transfers Out	(2,312)		(2,312)		(190,612)		(188,300)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)	 15,038	-	15,038		(161,986)	_	(177,024)
Net Change in Fund Balance	 109,078	_	109,078	-	146,063	_	36,985
Fund Balance, July 1	439,184		439,184		439,184		-
Fund Balance, June 30	\$ 548,262	\$_	548,262	\$	585,247	\$_ _	36,985

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS RETIREE HEALTHCARE PLAN YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Actuarial Valuation Date	 Actuarial Value of Assets (a)	 stuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) - Entry Age (b)	_	Unfunded AAL (UAAL) (b-a)	Funded Ratio (a/b)	_	Covered Payroll (c)	UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll ((b-a)/c)
6/30/13	\$ -	\$ 448,800	\$	448,800	-	\$	1,384,400	32.4%

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

As described in Note A to these financial statements, for purposes of reporting in conformity with GASB Statement No. 54, the District's Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay (Fund 17) is included with the General Fund. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule included in the Required Supplementary Information is based on the legally adopted budget for the General Fund only.

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO EL CAJON, CALIFORNIA

AUDIT REPORT

JUNE 30, 2013

Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP CPAs and Advisors 218 W. Douglas Ave El Cajon, CA 92020

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

í		
Ō	Supt. Janet Wilson	Meeting Date: ⊢ebruary 20, 2014 ☑ Action
From:	Gary Hobelman	☐ First Reading ☐ Information
Subject:	2012-13 Audit Report	PresentationDiscussion
		☐ Public Hearing ☐ Roll Call Vote Required
Background: Each year the audit provides	Background: Each year the district contracts with an accounting firm to conduct a thorough audit. The distant provides an objective review of how the districted operated during the prior fiscal year.	Background: Each year the district contracts with an accounting firm to conduct a thorough audit. The district's annual audit provides an objective review of how the districted operated during the prior fiscal year.
Report: This year's au packet is a full findings which	dit was conducted by the firm of Wilkinso audit report for fiscal year 2012-13 ending are outlined in detail on p.60 to 62 of the	Report: This year's audit was conducted by the firm of Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP. Enclosed with your packet is a full audit report for fiscal year 2012-13 ending June 30, 2013. This year's audit identified five findings which are outlined in detail on p.60 to 62 of the Audit Report. District administration is aware of
Financial Impact N/A	Financial Impact: N/A	adios car many.
Student Impact:	<u>ct</u>	
Recommendation: Administration reco	Recommendation: Administration recommends acceptance of the 2012-13 Audit Report.	Audit Report.

Agenda Item #: VII.B.4

Dehesa School District Audit Report For The Year Ended June 30, 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page Exhibit/Table

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds	Capital Projects Funds:	Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds	Special Revenue Funds:	Combining Balance Sheet - All Nonmajor Governmental Funds	Combining Statements as Supplementary Information:	Schedule of Funding Progress - Retiree Healthcare Plan Notes to Required Supplementary Information	General Fund	Budgetary Comparison Schedules:	Required Supplementary Information:	Notes to the Financial Statements	Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	Fund Balances - Governmental Funds	Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position	Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds	Statement of Activities	Government-wide Financial Statements: Statement of Net Position	Basic Financial Statements	Independent Auditor's Report	FINANCIAL SECTION
43 42		38 40		36 37		34 35	ဒ္ဌ			18	16 17	15	14	13	12	=======================================		- 4	
Exhibit C-5 Exhibit C-6		Exhibit C-3 Exhibit C-4		Exhibit C-1 Exhibit C-2			Exhibit B-1				Exhibit A-6 Exhibit A-7	Exhibit A-5	Exhibit A-4	Exhibit A-3	Exhibit A-2	Exhibit A-1			

Introductory Section

Financial Section

For The \

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page Exhibit/Table

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION

ehesa School District Audit Report Year Ended June 30, 2013

	63	Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
	59	Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
	56	Independent Auditor's Report on State Compliance
	54	Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133
		Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal
	52	in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
		Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
		Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
	5	Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Table D-	50	Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Table D-	49	Schedule of Charter Schools
Table D-	48	With Audited Financial Statements
		Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report
Table D-	47	Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis
Table D-	46	Schedule of Instructional Time
Table D-	45	Schedule of Average Daily Attendance
	44	Local Education Agency Organization Structure

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note A to the financial statements, in 2013, Dehesa School District adopted new accounting guidance, Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information identified as Required Supplementary Information in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained our provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Dehesa School District's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. The accompanying the supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the State's audit guide, Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies 2012-13, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and other supplementary information are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual normajor fund financial statements and other supplementary information are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP

CPAs and Advisors 218 W. Douglas Ave El Cajon, CA 92020

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees
Dehesa School District
El Cajon, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Dehesa School District ("the District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Dehesa School District as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

N

__

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS JUNE 30, 2013 UNAUDITED

This section of Dehesa School District's (the District) annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2013. Please read it in conjunction with District's financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. GASB No. 34 established financial reporting standards for state and local government, including cities, villages and special purpose governments.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

- Total Net Position was \$2,640,767 an increase of \$204,569 from prior year.
- Total Revenues were \$3,373,424, and total cost of basic programs was \$3,298,889.
- Revenues exceeded program costs by \$74,535.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of four parts - Management's Discussion and Analysis (this section), the Basic Financial Statement, Required Supplementary Information, and other Supplementary Information Section. The Basic Financials Statements present different views of the District as follows:

- The first two statements are district-wide combined Financial Statements that provide both short-term and long-term information about the District's overall financial status.
- The remaining statements are Fund Financials Statements that focus on individual parts
 of the District, reporting the District's operations in more detail than the district-wide
 statements.

The referenced financial statements also include *Notes* that explain some of the information in the statements and provide more detailed data. The financial statements are followed by a section of *Required Supplementary Information* that further explains and supports the financial statements with comparisons of the District's budget and actual results for the year.

Below summarizes the major features of the District's financial statements, including a portion of the district's activities they cover and the types of information they contain.

4

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 30, 2014 on our consideration of Dehesa School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Dehesa School District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Willemson Knowy King & Co., LLP

El Cajon, California January 30, 2014

ω

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) JUNE 30, 2013

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

District-Wide Statements

The two District-Wide Statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the District's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in The Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

- Net position (the difference between the District's assets and liabilities, see Table 1) is one way to measure the district's financial health or position
- Over time increases and decreases in .the District's net position is an indicator of whether financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.
- To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional non-financial factors such as change in the district's property tax base and the condition of school buildings and other facilities.
- 2) The District's activities are represented in the district-wide financial statements.
- District's Activities All of the district's basic services are included, such as regular and special education, transportation, and administration. Property taxes and state formula aid finance most of these activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financials Statements provide detailed information about the District's specific funds - not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and related spending on particular programs:

- Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.
- The District establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes (like repaying any long-term debt) or to show that it is properly using certain revenues (like Federal grants).

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) JUNE 30, 2013

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Major Features of the District-wide Financial Statements and Fund Financial Statements

	Fund Statements	
	District-Wide	Governmental Funds
Scope	Entire District, except fiduciary activities	The activities of the District that are not proprietary fiduciary, such as special education and building maintenance
Required financial statements	 Statement of Net Position 	Balance Sheet
	Statement of Activities	Statement of Revenue, Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balances
Accounting basis and measurement focus	Accrual accounting and economic resources focus	Modified accrual accounting and current financial resources focus
Type of asset/liability	All assets and liabilities, both financial and capital, short-term and long-term	Only assets expected to be used up and liabilities that come due during the year or soon thereafter; no capital assets included
Type of inflow/outflow information	All revenues and expenses during year, regardless of when cash is received or paid	Revenues for which cash is received during or soon after the end of the year, expenditures when goods or service have been received and payment is due during the year or soon thereafter

The remainder of this overview section of Management's Discussion and Analysis highlights the structure and contents of the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) JUNE 30, 2013

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Assets. The District's total revenue was \$3,373,424. (See Table A-2). The total cost of all programs and services was \$3,298,889. Total expenses surpassed revenue by \$74,535.

Change in Net Assets	Total Expenses	Interest on Long-Term Debt	Other Outgo	Plant Services	General Administration	Pupil Services	Instruction-Related Services	Instruction	Expenses	Total Revenues	Local Revenue	Federal & State Revenue	Revenue Limit Sources	General Revenues	Capital Grants and Contributions	Operating Grants and Contributions	Charges for Services	Program Revenues	Revenues		A CONTRACTOR OF THE CONTRACTOR	Condensed Sta	Ta
\$74,535	\$3,298,889	\$99,294	\$7,212	\$245,706	\$384,143	\$347,640	\$ 263,222	\$1,951,672		\$ 3,373,424	\$ 323,970	\$ 757,616	\$ 863,433		69	\$1,401,616	\$ 26,789			June 30, 2013		Condensed Statement of Activities	Table A-2
(\$60,304)	\$3,382,990	\$ 0	\$ 0	\$243,254	\$364,909	\$335,478	\$250,658	\$2,188,691		 \$3,322,686	\$ 190,964	\$ 443,568	\$1,166,921		0	\$1,498,984	\$ 22,249			June 30,2012		SS	
\$ 134,839	\$ 84,101	\$ 99,294	\$ 7,212	\$ 2,452	\$ 19,234		\$ 12,564	\$ (237,019)		- 1	\$ 133,006	\$ 314,048	\$ (303,488)		\$	<u>a</u>	\$ 4,540			Difference			

Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities categorizes the activities presented in Table A-2 by revenue source:

- The cost of all governmental activities this year was \$1,870,484.
- Revenues from users of the District's programs amounted to \$26,789.
- Federal and state Governments subsidized programs contributions was \$1,401,616.
- Revenue from Revenue Limit sources was \$863,433. Local and miscellaneous revenues account for \$323,970.

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) JUNE 30, 2013

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The District has Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds - Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds, which generally focus on (1) how cash, and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash, flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending, Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the district's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement that explains the relationship (or differences) between

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net Assets. The District's combined net position as of June 30, 2013, was \$2,640,767. (See Table A-1.)

	Table A-1		
Condens	Condensed Statement of Net Position	Position	
	June 30, 2013	June 30, 2012	\$ Change
Current & Other Assets	\$4,729,745	\$1,794,701	\$2,935,044
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation	\$ 958,983	\$1,046,838	\$ (87,855)
Total Assets	\$5,688,728	\$2,841,539	\$2,847,189
Current Liabilities	\$ 235,949	\$ 366.348	\$ (130,399)
General Long-Term Debt	\$2,812,012	\$ 38,993	\$2,773,019
Total Liabilities	\$3,047,961	\$ 405,341	\$2,642,620
Net Position			
Invested in Capital Assets		\$1,046,838	\$(1,046,838)
Restricted	\$ 287,832	\$ 719,085	\$ (431,253)
Unrestricted	\$2,352,935	\$ 670,275	\$ 1,682,266
Total Net Position	\$2,640,767	\$2,436,198	\$ 204,569

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) JUNE 30, 2013

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (CONTINUED)

Long-Term Debt

	OF STREET		
\$ 2,773,019	\$ 38,993	\$ 2,812,012	Total Long Term Debt
\$ 216,366	\$	\$ 216,366	Bond Premium
\$ 47,061	\$	\$ 47,061	Net OPEB Obligation
\$ 3,672	\$	\$ 3,672	Accreted Interest
\$ 2,499,852	0	\$ 2,499,852	GO Bonds
\$ 6,068	\$ 38,993	\$ 45,061	Compensated Absences
\$ Change	June 30, 2012	June 30, 2013	
		Long Term Debt	1
		Table A-5	And the state of t

FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT'S FUTURE

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the only known circumstances that could significantly affect its financial health in the future would be an increase in the number of Special Needs students and associated special education costs, the State's continuing economic decline, its impact on the State budget, and related reduced funding to the school district.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and creditors with a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Gary Hobelman, Business Manager, Dehesa School District, 4612 Dehesa Road, El Cajon, CA 92019.

Dehesa School District

10

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) JUNE 30, 2013

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. The District closed fiscal year 2012 - 2013 with a total combined, government fund balance of \$4,324,824.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the Board approves five versions of the operating budget. These budget revisions fall into the categories of Preliminary, Adopted, First Interim, Second Interim, and Final Adopted.

Major budget amendments in revenue for the year include changes in Revenue Limit to LCFF: Federal Grants such as IDEA Special Ed., Title I, Safe and Drug Free Schools; state amounts such as Special Education, EIA, and Lottery.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

Capital assets (net of depreciation) are at \$958,983. These assets include Land, Land Improvement, Building Construction and Equipment. Total depreciation expense for the year was \$145,401. Total new assets purchased during the year were \$57,546, and consisted of computer equipment and work in process for new construction.

Capital Assets June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012 \$ 24,634 \$ 0 \$ 3,000 \$ 3,000 \$ 2,059,265 \$ 2,040,732 \$ 9,900 \$ 9,900 \$ 694,221 \$ 679,843 (\$1,832,037) \$ (1,686,637) \$ 958,983 \$ 1,046,838	i avie n+	Canital Assets	Capital Assets			\$	\$ 3,000 \$	\$ 2,059,265 \$ 2,040,732	\$ 9,900 \$	\$ 694,221 \$ 679,843	(\$1,832,037) \$(1,686,637)	Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation \$ 958,983 \$ 1,046,838 \$(87,855)	TO TOTAL STREET,	rogress rovements t umulated Depreciation ital Assets, Net of Depreciation	June 30, 2013 \$ 24,634 \$ 3,000 \$ 2,059,265 \$ 9,900 \$ 694,221 \$ 958,983	June 30, 2012 \$ 0 \$ 3,000 \$ 2,040,732 \$ 9,900 \$ 679,843 \$ (1,686,637) \$ 1,046,838	\$ Change \$ 0 \$ 0 \$ 18,533 \$ 14,378 \$ 14,378 \$ (87,855)
01-1		01-1	0-4-0-4	Capital Assets	Capital Assers	013	June 30, 2013 \$ 24,634	June 30, 2013 \$ 24,634 \$ 3,000	rogress \$ 2,634 \$ 2,000 \$ 2,000 \$ 2,000 \$ 2,059,265	rogress June 30, 2013 \$ 24,634 \$ 3,000 \$ 2,059,265 overments \$ 9,900	rogress June 30, 2013 June 30, 2013 \$ 24,634 \$ 3,000 \$ 2,059,265 \$ 9,900 t \$ 694,221	June 30, 2013 June 30, 2013 \$ 24,634 \$ 3,000 \$ 3,000 \$ 2,059,265 "ovements	June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012		1-1 1		***************************************

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT STATEMENT OF NET POSITION JUNE 30, 2013

Total Net Position	Other Purposes (Experidable) Other Purposes (Nonexpendable)	Educational Programs	Debt Service	Capital Projects	Restricted for:	NET POSITION:	Total Liabilities	Accreted interest	Due in More Than One Year	Due Within One Year	Long-Term Liabilities:	Accounts Payable	LIABILITIES:	Total Assets	Less Accumulated Depreciation	Work in Progress	Equipment	Buildings	Land Improvements	Land	Capital Assets:	Prepaid expenses	Accounts Receivable	Cash	ASSETS:
\$ 2,640,767	301,440 287,832	937,043	1,089,818	24,634			3,047,961	3,672	2,676,067	132,273		235,949		5,688,728	(1,832,037)	24,634	694,221	2,059,265	9,900	3,000		216,366	888,464	\$ 3,624,915	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Basic Financial Statements

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICTBALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2013

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances	Unassigned, reported in nonmajor: Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Funds Capital Projects Funds Total Fund Balance	Assigned Fund Balances Unassigned: Reserve for Economic Uncertainty Other Unassigned	Fund Balance: Nonspendable Fund Balances: Revolving Cash Restricted Fund Balances Compilited Fund Balances	LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE: Liabilities: Accounts Payable Due to Other Funds Total Liabilities	ASSETS: Cash in County Treasury Cash on Hand and in Banks Cash in Revolving Fund Accounts Receivable Due from Other Funds Total Assets
\$ 1,480,732	1,093,774	799,937	6,005 287,832	\$ 178,996 207,962 386,958	General Fund \$ 416,691 1,055 6,005 882,319 174,662 1,480,732
\$2,508,055	2,508,055	- - - - - - -))))	4	Building Fund \$ 2,506,072 - 1,983 2,508,055
\$ 732,553	721,995	15,604	13,716	\$ 10,558	Other Governmental Funds \$ 693,493 1,599 - 4,161 33,300 732,553
\$ 4,721,340	4,323,824	3,200,730 15,604 799,937	6,005 301,548	\$ 189,554 207,962 397,516	Total Governmental Funds \$ 3,616,256 2,654 6,005 888,453 207,962 4,721,340

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

3

EXHIBIT A-3

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT A-2

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in

				General Revenues:	Gen
\$ (1,870,484)		1,401,616 \$	26,789 \$	3,298,889 \$	Total Expenses \$_
(99,294)			-	99,294	Interest on Long-Term Debt
(7,211)				7,212	Other outgo
34,400	,	34,400		•	Enterprise Activities
(245,706)	,		,	245,706	Plant Services
(339,185)		42,812	•	381,997	Administration
					All Other General
(2,146)			,	2,146	Centralized Data Processing
					General Administration:
(60,684)	•	85,520		146,204	All Other Pupil Services
6,578		57,809	26,789	78,020	Food Services
(44,459)		78,957	•	123,416	portation
					Home-to-School Trans-
					Pupil Services:
(191,354)		28,182		219,536	School Site Administration
(15,393)				15,393	and Technology
					Instructional Library, Media
279		28,572		28,293	and Administration
					Instructional Supervision
					Instruction-Related Services:
\$ (906,309)	- 69	1,045,363	•	1,951,672 \$	Instruction \$
					Governmental Activities:
Activities	Contributions	Contributions		Expenses	Eunctions
Governmental	Capital Grants and	Operating Grants and	Charges for		
Net Position	es	Program Revenues			

Taxes and Subventions:

Net Position Beginning Adjustment to Beginning Balance (Note O) Wet Position Beginning as Adjusted	Change in Net Position	aral Purposes Service Purposes 1 Restricted to Specific Programs Earnings	axes and Subventions:
2,436,198 130,034 2,566,232	74,535	766,124 97,386 (77) 757,616 13,255 243,860 66,855 1,945,019	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

	General Fund	Building	Other Governmental Funds	Total Governmental Funds
Revenues:				
Hevenue Limit Sources: State Apportionments	\$ 1.034.881	59	·	¢ 1024 881
Local Sources		•		153.406
Federal Revenue	547,791	•	53,549	601,340
Other State Revenue	391,497		5,629	397.126
Other Local Revenue	998,712	8,203	179,755	1,186,670
Total Revenues	3,126,287	8,203	238,933	3,373,423
Expenditures:				
Instruction	1,903,859		750	1,904,609
Instruction - Related Services	263,110	,		263,110
Pupil Services	212,084	•	134,097	346,181
General Administration	240,010		8,940	248,950
Plant Services Debt Service:	198,118	•	90,429	288,547
Interest			56,438	56,438
Total Expenditures	2,817,181	1	290,654	3,107,835
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures	309,106	8,203	(51,721)	265,588
Other Financing Sources (Uses): Transfers In	185,938		33,300	219,238
Transfers Out Other Sources	(219,238)	2,499,852		(219,238) 2,499,852
l otal Other Financing Sources (Uses)	(33,300)	2,499,852	33,300	2,499,852
Net Change in Fund Balance	275,806	2,508,055	(18,421)	2,765,440
Fund Balance, July 1 Fund Balance, June 30	817,968 \$ 1,093,774		740,416	
מוזע במומו וכפ, סטויפ סט	\$ 1,080,774	\$ 2,508,055	\$ /21,995	\$ 4,323,824

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

5

EXHIBIT A-5

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT A-4

-	Unmatured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is not recognized until the period in which it matures and is paid. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the period that it is incurred. The additional liability for unmatured interest owing at the end of the period was:	Unamortized costs: In governmental funds, debt issue costs are recognized as expenditures in the period they are incurred. In the government-wide statements, debt issue costs are amortized over the life of the debt. Unamortized debt issue costs included in prepaid expense on the statement of net position are:	2,791,020 (1,832,037)	Capital Assets: In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net position, all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation.	Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net Position are different because:	
3.1310	- 4-4		120	*		
(2,812,012)	(46,396)	958,983 216,366				

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Total net position, governmental activities

2,640,766

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION FIDUCIARY FUNDS JUNE 30, 2013

NET POSITION: Total Net Position	LIABILITIES: Due to Student Groups Total Liabilities	ASSETS: Cash on Hand and in Banks Total Assets	
()	\$ 1,882 1,882	Student Body Fund \$ 1,882 1,882	Agency Fund

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

17

EXHIBIT A-7

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND OFANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

2,765,440

Total change in fund balances, governmental funds

Capital outlay: In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as expenditures in the period when the assets are acquired. In the statement of activities, costs of capital assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The difference between capital outlay expenditures and depreciation expense for the period is:

Depreciation expense Expenditures for capital outlay Net: 57,546 (145,401) (87,855)

Debt proceeds: In governmental funds, proceeds from debt are recognized as Other Financing Sources. In the government-wide statements, proceeds from debt are reported as increases to liabilities. Amounts recognized in governmental funds as proceeds from debt, net of issue premium or discount, were:

(2,499,852)

(50,068)

Unmatured interest on long-term debt: In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is recognized in the period it becomes due. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the period that it is incurred. Unmatured interest owing at the end of the period, less matured interest paid during the period but owing from the prior period, was:

Debt issue costs: In governmental funds, debt issue costs are recognized as expenditures in the period they are incurred. In the government-wide statements, issue costs are amortized over the life of the debt. The difference between debt issue costs recognized in the current period and issue costs amortized for the period is:

Issue costs amortized for the period

(7,213)

Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB): In governmental funds, OPEB costs are recognized when employer contributions are made. In the statement of activities, OPEB costs are recognized on the accrual basis. This year, the difference between OPEB costs and actual employer contributions was:

(47,061)

Amortization of debt issue premium or discount: In governmental funds, if debt is issued at a premium or at a discount, the premium or discount is recognized as an Other Financing Source or an Other Financing Use in the period it is incurred. In the government-wide statements, the premium or discount is amortized as interest over the life of the debt. Amortization of premium or discount for the period is.

Compensated absences: In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by amounts paid during the period. In the statement of activities, compensated absences measured by the amounts earned. The difference between compensated absences paid compensated absences earned was: y the s are and

Change in net assets of governmental activities - statement of activities

74,535

(6,068)

7,212

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT A-6

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

District except those required to be accounted for in another fund. General Fund. This is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the

Capital Facilities Fund. This fund is used to account for the acquisition of capital assets from the use of

In addition, the District reports the following fund types:

that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources

governmental general fixed assets. Capital Projects Funds: These funds account for the acquisition and/or construction 으 all major

general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. Debt Service Funds. These funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment

remittance of fiducíary resources to individuals, private organizations, or other governments. Agency Funds: These funds are used to report student activity funds and other resources held in a purely custodial capacity (assets equal liabilities). Agency funds typically involve only the receipt, temporary investment, and

a trustee or agent capacity and are therefore not available to support District programs, these funds are not included in the government-wide statements. Fiduciary funds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements. However, because their assets are held in

Ö Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

(or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized Government-wide and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: These financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives

earned, since they are both measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The District does not consider revenues collected after its capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds, long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. taxes. Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized under the susceptible-to-accrual concept. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as year-end to be available in the current period. Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property Proceeds of general

When the District incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources may be used, it is the District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources.

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Dehesa School District (District) accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the policies and procedures of the Department of Education's 'California School Accounting Manual'. The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Reporting Entity

The Districts combined financial statements include the accounts of all its operations. The District evaluated whether any other entity should be included in these financial statements. The criteria for including organizations as component units within the Districts reporting entity, as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity," include whether:

- the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its name)
- the District holds the corporate powers of the organization the District appoints a voting majority of the organization's board

- the District is able to impose its will on the organization the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District
- there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the District

The District also evaluated each legally separate, tax-exempt organization whose resources are used principally to provide support to the District to determine if its omission from the reporting entity would result in financial statements which are misleading or incomplete. GASB Statement No. 14 requires inclusion of such an organization as a component unit when: 1) The economic resources received or held by the organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the District, its component units or its constituents; and 2) The District or its component units is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the organization; and 3) Such economic resources are significant to the District.

any other reporting entity as defined by the GASB Statement Based on these criteria, the District has no component units. Additionally, the District is not a component unit of

'n Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

Basis of Presentation

financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities include the

not allocate indirect expenses in the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The District does that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues

aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ω. Receivable and Payable Balances

The District believes that sufficient detail of receivable and payable balances is provided in the financial statements to avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is provided which disaggregates those balances.

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end

ø Compensated Absences

reported in the District's long-term debt. Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as liabilities of the District. The amount is

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's policy is to record sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken since such benefits do not vest nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period for calculation of retirement benefits when the employee retires.

Deferred Revenue

Cash received for federal and state special projects and programs is recognized as revenue to the extent that qualified expenditures have been incurred. Deferred revenue is recorded to the extent cash received on specific projects and programs exceeds qualified expenditures.

ė Interfund Activity

and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single "Transfers" line on the government-wide statement of activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables are netted and presented as a single "Internal Balances" line of the government-wide statement of net position. expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers in Interfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures or

=

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1. Taxes are payable in two installments on November 15 and March 15. Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 31. The County of San Diego bills and collects the taxes for the District.

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain intact (such as notes receivable or principal of a permanent fund)

Restricted Fund Balance - represents amounts that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

2

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

ω Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid. All encumbrances are liquidated as of June 30.

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

4.

ω Deposits and Investments

Cash balances held in banks and in revolving funds are insured to \$250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institutions is fully insured or collateralized.

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all its cash in the San Diego County Treasury. The county pools these funds with those of other districts in the county and invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at cost, which approximates market value, Interest earned is deposited quarterly into participating funds, except for the Tax Override Funds, in which interest earned is credited to the general fund. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the pool.

collateralized. 53648 et seq. The county is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section The funds maintained by the county are either secured by federal depository insurance or are

not available Information regarding the amount of dollars invested in derivatives with San Diego County Treasury was

Ġ Stores Inventories and Prepaid Expenditures

inventories are recorded using the purchases method in that the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are purchased. These inventories are immaterial and have been omitted

The District has the option of reporting an expenditure in governmental funds for prepaid items either when purchased or during the benefiting period. The District has chosen to report the expenditure when incurred.

ဂ Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of \$5,000 is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

	Estimated
Asset Class	Useful Lives
Buildings	25-50
Building Improvements	10-20
Vehicles	5-7
Office Equipment	3-15

Ξ. GASB 63 Implementation

The District has implemented GASB Statement Number 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. The purpose of this pronouncement is to improve financial reporting by standardizing the presentation of deferred inflows and outflows of resources and their effects on a government's net position. Transactions that result in consumption or acquisition of net assets in one period that are applicable to tuture periods as deferred outflows and inflows of resources which are distinguished from assets and liabilities. Net position is the difference inflows of resources which are distinguished from assets and liabilities. between 1) assets and deferred outflows of resources; resources. For the year ended June 30, 2013 the would be considered deferred outflows and inflows of resources. District and 2) liabilities did not have any items which and deferred inflows of

ρ Compliance and Accountability

Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures," violations of finance-related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address such violations;

e reported	ation
No	Ac
Not applicable	tion Taken

Viola

io Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Assets of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net assets at year end, if any, along with remarks which address such deficits:

	Deficit	
und Name	Amount	Remarks
lone reported	Not applicable	Not applicable

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

9

zh

As of June 30, 2013, expenditures exceeded appropriations in individual funds as follows:

Capital outlay	Services and other operating expenditures	Employee benefits	Classified salaries	Certificated salaries	General Fund:	Appropriations Category
				€9		 C
14,379	3,762	41,369	40,589	29,000		Excess Expenditures

Cash and Investments

Ö

Cash in County Treasury:

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of its cash in the San Diego County Treasury as part of the common investment pool (\$3.516,256 as of June 30, 2013). The fair value of the Districts pontion of this pool as of that date, as provided by the pool sponsor, was \$3.516,256 Assumptions made in determining the fair value of the pooled investment portfolios are available from the County Treasurer.

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Committed Fund Balance - represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of a formal action by the District's governing board. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the governing board removes those constraints by taking the same type of formal action. Committed fund balance amounts may be used for other purposes with appropriate due process by the governing board. Commitments are typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. Committed fund balance amounts differ from restricted balances in that the constraints on their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation.

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which the District intends to use for a specific purpose, but that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent may be stipulated by the governing board or by an official or body to which the governing board delegates the authority. Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital projects, debt service or permanent fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type or the fund's primary purpose. Assignments within the general fund conveys that the intended use of those amounts is for a specific purpose that is narrower than the general purposes of the District itself.

Unassigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for any purpose. Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental funds might report a negative balance in this classification because of overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned

When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds.

Minimum Fund Balance

The District maintains a minimum reserve of 5% of general tund expenditures including other financing uses within the general fund. This reserve may be increased from time to time in order to address specific anticipated shortfalls if necessary. The Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Cultay may also be used to meet the minimum state required reserve level. The minimum reserve shall apply exceeds the requirements by law. The District is committed to maintaining a prudent level of financial resources to protect against the need to reduce service levels because of temporary revenue shorifalls or towards the established minimum Reserve for Economic Uncertainties or an amount that that meets or

Because amounts in the nonspendable, restricted, committed, and assigned categories are subject varying constraints in use, the Reserve for Economic Uncertainties consists of balances that otherwise unassigned. are

GASB 54 Fund Presentation

Reserve Fund for Other Than presentation in the audit report. Consistent with fund reporting requirements established by GASB Statement #54, Fund 17 (Special Capital Outlay) is merged with the General Fund for purposes of

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with estimates. Actual results could differ from those estimates. GAAP requires the use 앜 management's

Investment Accounting Policy

The District is required by GASB Statement No. 31 to disclose its policy for determining which investments, if any, are reported at annotized cost. The District's general policy is to report money market investments and short-term participating interest-earning investment contracts at amortized cost and to report monparticipating interest-earning investment contracts using a cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair value unless a legal contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term "short-term" refers to investments which have a remaining term of one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparticipating" means that the investment's value does not vary with market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating interest-earning investment

The District's investments in external investment pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value per share of the pool's underlying portfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-like, in which case they are reported at share value. A 2a7-like pool is one which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") as an investment company, but nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.

Accounts Receivable

iu

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2013 consisted of:

	1	General Fund	Special Revenue Funds	Capital Projects Funds		Total
Federal Government: Federal programs	€9	220,320 \$	3,440 \$	•	€9	223,760
State Government:						
101000		200,000				200,000
Lottery		17,548	•			17,548
Other state programs		102,552	276	•		102,828
Local Sources:						
Interest		497	245	2,177		2,919
Other local sources	l	285,843				285,843
Totals	69	882,319 \$	3,961 \$	2,177 \$	€9	888,457

25

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Cash on Hand, in Banks, and in Revolving Fund

'n

Cash balances on hand and in banks (\$4,536 as of June 30, 2013) and in the revolving fund (\$6,005) are insured up to \$250,000 by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation. All cash held by the financial institution is fully insured or collateralized.

Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks

ω

GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the District was exposed to the following specific investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The country is restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest only in time deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer's investment pool, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, and repurchase or veverse repurchase agreements. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to give an indication of credit risk. The San Diego County Investment Pool is rated AAAf by Standard & Poors.

Custodial Credit Risk

ġ.

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the District's name.

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty's trust department or agent but not in the District's name. At year end, the District was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk

ဂ

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer, year end, the District was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

۵

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing in the County Treasury. The District maintains an investment with the San Diego Investment Pool with a fair value of \$3,616,256 and a book value of \$3,616,256. The weighted average days to maturity for this investment

Foreign Currency Risk

Ģ

District was not exposed to foreign currency risk. This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the

Transfers To and From Other Funds

Transfers to and from other funds at June 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

Transfers From	Transfers To	l	Amount	Purpose
General Fund	Child Development Fund	€9	3,300	Loan for payroll
General Fund	Deferred Maintenance Fund			RRMA contribution
General Fund	Special Reserve Fund			Oversight fees
Special Reserve Fund	General Fund			Expense reimbursement
	Total	59	219 238	

Accounts Payable

Accounts payable at June 30, 2013 consisted of:

	1	General Fund	Revenue	Projects Fund	Total
or payables	↔	163,163 \$	14 \$	\$ 600'01	173,186
Il and related benefits		15,833	535		16,368
Totals	€9	178,996 \$	549 \$	10,009 \$	189,554

549 \$ 10,009 \$ 189,554

Long-Term Obligations

Long-Term Obligation Activity

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2013, are as follows:

	Total governmental activities \$ 38,	Net OPEB obligation -	ices •	Bond premium -	Accreted interest -	General obligation bonds \$ -	vernmental activities;	Balance	Beginning	
l	38,993 \$		38,993			€9		Ф	മ	
	2,780,231 \$	47,061	6,068	223,578	3,672	2,499,852 \$		increases		
NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY O	7,212 \$			7,212		, ()		Decreases		
	2,812,012 \$	47,061	45,061	216,366	3,672	2,499,852 \$		Balance	Ending	
	132,273		45,061	7,212	•	80,000		One Year	Due Within	Amplinto

Other long-term liabilities
 The funds typically used to liquidate other long-term liabilities in the past are as follows:

bensated absences Governmental General
Governmental

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Governmental activities capital assets, net	Total capital assets being depreciated, net	Total accumulated depreciation	Equipment	Improvements	Buildings	Less accumulated depreciation for:	Total capital assets being depreciated	Equipment	Improvements	Buildings	Capital assets being depreciated:	Total capital assets not being depreciated	Work in progress	Land	Capital assets not being depreciated:	Governmental activities:	
69	l	1						1				1		₩			l
1,046,838 \$	1,031,904	(1,686,636)	(401,930)	(9,900)	(1,274,806)		2,718,540	679,842	9,900	2,028,798		14,934	11,934	3,000 \$			Beginning Balances
		ŀ												77			_
(87,855) \$	(100,555)	(145,401)	(65,988)	•	(79,413)		44,846	14,379	•	30,467		12,700	12,700	, 69			Increases
		٠	٠		,		,		•			-					Decreases
ူမေ														↔			
958,983	931,349	(1,832,037)	(467,918)	(9,900)	(1,354,219)		2,763,386	694,221	9,900	2,059,265		27,634	24,634	3,000			Ending Balances

Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:

9	↔	
145 401	145,401	

Ġ Interfund Balances and Activites

General Administration

Due To and From Other Funds

Balances due to and due from other funds at June 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

Due To Fund	Due From Fund	Ì	Amount	Purpose
Child Development Fund	General Fund	€9	3,300	Loan for payroll
Deferred Maintenance Fund	General Fund		30,000	RRMA contribution
Special Reserve Fund	General Fund		157,312	Oversight fees
General Fund	Special Reserve Fund		17,350	Expense reimbursement
	Total	₩.	207,962	

All amounts due are scheduled to be repaid within one year.

Joint Ventures (Joint Powers Agreements)

component unit of the District. The District participates in one joint powers agreement (JPA) entity, the San Diego County Schools Risk Management (SDCSRM). The relationship between the District and the JPA is such that the JPA is not a

The JPA arranges for and provides for various types of insurances for its member districts as requested. The JPA is governed by a board consisting of a representative from each member district. The board controls the operations of the JPA, including selection of management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the member districts beyond their representation on the board. Each member district pays a premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested and shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to their

Combined condensed unaudited financial information of the District's share of the JPA for the year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows:

Total Cash Receipts	Total Assets
Total Cash Disbursements	Total Liabilities
Net Change in Fund Balance	Total Fund Balance
	↔
12,055	(40,009)
9,191	1,353
2,864	(41,362)

The District has a repayment plan in place to repay the deficit balance at June 30, 2013.

Employee Retirement Systems

ᄌ

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), and classified employees are members of the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS).

Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CaPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. CaPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the CaPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CaPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento,

Funding Policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 7% of their salary and the District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the CaIPERS Board of Administration. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2012-13 was 11.417% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. The District's contributions to CaIPERS for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were \$49,188, \$41,841 and \$41,195, respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions for each year.

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICTNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Debt Service Requirements

Debt service requirements on long-term debt, net of bond premium and accreted interest, at June 30, 2013, are as follows

		Gover	Governmental Activities	
Year Ending June 30.		Principal	Interest	Total
2014	€9	125,061 \$	109,388 \$	234,449
2015			107,425	107,425
2016			107,425	107,425
2017		•	107,425	107,425
2018		,	107,425	107,425
2019-2023		110,000	528,125	638,125
2024-2028		265,000	494,212	759,212
2029-2033		403,552	430,124	833,676
2034-2038		341,300	389,450	730,750
2039-2043		1,030,000	216,038	1,246,038
2044-2048	ı	270,000	7,088	277,088
Totals	€9	2,544,913 \$	2,604,125 \$	5,149,038

General Obligation Bonds

General obligation bonds at June 30, 2013 consisted of the following:

3,672 2,503,524	69 ,		3,672 2,503,524 \$	co		€9	2010 Accreted Interest Total GO Bonds
2,499,852	↔		2,499,852 \$	↔		€9	2010 Election Series A
Ending Balance	1	Decreases	Increases		Beginning Balance	ı	
2,499,852		08/01/2043 \$	3.00-4.00%		08/01/2012		2010 Election Series A
Amount of Original Issue	1	Maturity Date	Interest Rate	1	Date of Issue	1	

The annual requirements to amortize the bonds outstanding at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

Totals	2044-2048	2039-2043	2034-2038	2029-2033	2024-2028	2019-2023	2018	2017	2016	2015	2014	Year Ending June 30,	
\$ 2,499,852 \$	270,000	1,030,000	341,300	403,552	265,000	110,000	•		,	1	\$ 80,000 \$	Principal	
411,627 \$		•	45,078	150,482	102,835	68,116	10,565	9,735	8,961	8,255	7,600 \$	Interest	Accreted
2,604,125 \$	7,088	216,038	389,450	430,124	494,212	528,125	107,425	107,425	107,425	107,425	109,388 \$	Interest	
5,515,604	277,088	1,246,038	775,828	984,158	862,047	706,241	117,991	117,159	116,386	115,680	196,988	Total	

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICTNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

for 2013 was as follows: The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB obligation

2013	Year Ended June 30,
\$67,519	Annual Required Contribution
30.3%	Percentage Contributed
\$47,061	Net OPEB Obligation

Funding Status and Funding Progress

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and the Plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and Plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the

The District utilized the Alternative Measurement Method which differs from a full actuarial valuation and is permitted for employers with fewer than one hundred plan members, which includes employees in active service, terminated employees who have accumulated benefits but are not receiving them, and retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits. In the June 30, 2013 actuarial review under the Alternative Measurement Method, the actuarial cost method used was Projected Unit Credit with service prorate. Under this method, the Actuarial Accrued Liability is the present value of projected benefits multiplied by the ratio of benefit service as of the valuation date to the projected benefit service at refirement, termination, disability or death. The Normal Cost for a plan year is the expected increase in the Accrued Liability during the plan year. All employees eligible as of the measurement date in accordance with the provisions of the Plan listed in the data provided by the Employer were included in the valuation.

The UAAL is being amortized at a level dollar method with the amortization period at June 30, 2013 of 30 years

≥

State and Federal Allowances, Awards, and Grants

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to view and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement will not be material.

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

STRS:

Plan Description

The District contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by STRS. The plan provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to benefiticaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. STRS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the STRS annual financial report may be obtained from the STRS, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento, California 95826.

Funding Policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 8% of their salary and the District is required to contribute an actuarially determined trate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the STRS Teachers' Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2012-13 was 8.25% of annual payolt. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. The District's contributions to STRS for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were \$74,321, \$74,741 and \$74,805, respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions for each year. The amount contributed by the State on behalf of the District was \$47,561.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits

Plan Description

The Dehesa School District (District) offers health care benefits, as established by board policy, to all employees who retire from the District and meet established requirements. Currently, the District pays 100% of the cost of the premium. Based on the June 30, 2013 actuarial study the number of active employees was 25 with 2

The contribution requirements of Plan members and the District are established and amended by the District. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For fiscal year 2012-13, the District contributed \$20,458 for health care benefits which represented 30.3% the annual required contribution.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The District's annual other post employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actually determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (IAAL) (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the Districts annual OPEB cost of the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan and changes in the District's net obligation to the Plan:

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year Net OPEB obligation, end of year	Annual required contribution Contribution made horsass in par OPER obligation
9	€9
47,061	67,519 (20,458)

Required Supplementary Information

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board but not considered a part of the basic financial statements.

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

ŗ Subsequent Events

Effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013 the District is implementing GASB Statement Number 65, llems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. The purpose of this pronouncement is to improve financial reporting by clarifying the appropriate use of the financial statement leterents of deterred inflows and outflows of resources to ensure consistency in financial reporting. With implementation of this pronouncement, the District will recognize certain items prevously reported as assets or liabilities as outflows of resources.

Adjustment to Beginning Net Assets

0

An adjustment was made to the beginning net assets in the Government Wide Financial Statements in the amount of \$130,034 to account for the recognition of the Charter School Fund. Now that eAcademy charter school has been disolved the District is account for transactions associated with the charter school.

Net Assets, Beginning (As Originally Stated)

130,034

2,436,198

Net Assets, Beginning (As Restated)

Adjustment for recognition of Charter School Fund

2,566,232

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
RETIREE HEALTHCARE PLAN
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

6/30/13	Actuarial Valuation Date
↔	1
	Actuarial Value of Assets (a)
↔	
448,800	Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) - Entry Age (b)
€9	ı
448,800	Unfunded AAL (UAAL) (b-a)
	Funded Ratio (a/b)
€9	ı
1,384,400	Covered Payroll (c)
32.4%	UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll ((b-a)/c)

EXHIBIT B-1

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Fund Balance, July 1 Fund Balance, June 30	Other Financing Sources (Uses): Transfers In Transfers Out Transfers Out Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)	Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures	Expenditures: Current: Certificated Salaries Classified Salaries Employee Benefits Books And Supplies Services And Other Operating Expenditures Capital Outlay Total Expenditures	Revenues: Revenue Limit Sources: State Apportionments Local Sources Federal Revenue Other State Revenue Other Local Revenue Total Revenues
439,184 \$ 548,262	17,350 (2,312) 15,038	94,040	887,957 426,922 352,080 156,449 916,673	Budgete Original \$ 976,238 129,131 389,375 350,088 989,289 2,834,121
\$ 548,262	17,350 (2,312) 15,038	94,040	887,957 426,922 352,080 156,449 916,673	ginal Final 976.238 \$ 976.238 29,131 129,131 29,131 389,375 39,375 50,088 350,088 89,289 989,289 394,121 2,834,121
146,063 439,184 \$ 585,247	28,626 (190,612) (161,986)	308,049	916,957 467,511 393,449 104,450 920,435 14,379 2,817,181	Actual \$ 1,034,881 153,406 547,791 391,497 997,655 3,125,230
36,985 - \$36,985	11,276 (188,300) (177,024)	214,009	(29,000) (40,589) (41,369) 51,999 (3,762) (14,379)	\$ 58,643 24,275 41,409 8,366 291,109

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICTNOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

As described in Note A to these financial statements, for purposes of reporting in conformity with GASB Statement No. 54, the District's Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay (Fund 17) is included with the General Fund. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule included in the Required Supplementary Information is based on the legally adopted budget for the General Fund only.

Combining Statements and Budget Comparisons as Supplementary Information This supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS JUNE 30, 2013

ASSETS:	_	Special Revenue Funds	 Debt Service Fund Bond Interest Redemption	_	Capital Projects Funds	Total Nonmajor overnmental Funds (See Exhibit A-3)
Cash in County Treasury Cash on Hand and in Banks Accounts Receivable Due from Other Funds Total Assets	\$ =	310,073 1,599 3,961 33,300 348,933	\$ 134,634 - - - - 134,634	\$ =	248,786 - 200 - 248,986	\$ 693,493 1,599 4,161 33,300 732,553
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE: Liabilities: Accounts Payable Total Liabilities	\$_ _	549 549	\$ 	\$_ _	10,009	\$ 10,558 10,558
Fund Balance: Nonspendable Fund Balances: Restricted Fund Balances Committed Fund Balances Assigned Fund Balances Total Fund Balance	_ _	13,716 326,439 8,229 348,384	 - 134,634 - 134,634		- 231,602 7,375 238,977	 13,716 692,675 15,604 721,995
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances	\$_	348,933	\$ 134,634	\$_	248,986	\$ 732,553

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revenue Interest Pro	Nonmajor apital Governmental ojects Funds (See unds Exhibit A-5)
Revenues:	
Federal Revenue \$ 53,549 \$ - \$	- \$ 53,549
Other State Revenue 4,516 1,113	- 5,629
Other Local Revenue	6,562 179,755
Total Revenues 134,671 97,700	6,562 238,933
Expenditures:	
Instruction 750 -	- 750
Pupil Services 134,097 -	- 134,097
General Administration 3,175 -	5,765 8,940
Plant Services 30,200 -	60,229 90,429
Debt Service:	
Interest - 56,438	- 56,438
Total Expenditures 168,222 56,438	65,994 290,654
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues	
Over (Under) Expenditures (33,551) 41,262	(59,432) (51,721)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):	
Transfers In 33,300 -	- 33,300
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 33,300 -	- 33,300
Net Change in Fund Balance (251) 41,262	(59,432) (18,421)
Fund Balance, July 1 348,635 93,372	298,409 740,416
Fund Balance, June 30 \$ 348,384 \$ 134,634 \$	238,977 \$ 721,995

EXHIBIT C-3

eteria und	Deferred aintenance Fund	F	Total Nonmajor Special Revenue unds (See xhibit C-1)
\$ 8,061 970 3,722 - 12,753	\$ 173,903 - 136 30,000 204,039	\$	310,073 1,599 3,961 33,300 348,933
\$ 218 218	\$ <u>-</u>	\$	549 549
 12,535 - - 12,535	 - 204,039 - 204,039		13,716 326,439 8,229 348,384
\$ 12,753	\$ 204,039	\$	348,933

 Čafeteria Fund	Deferred aintenance Fund	_	Total Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds (See Exhibit C-2)
\$ 53,549	\$ -	\$	53,549
4,234	-		4,516
26,815	 470		76,606
84,598	 470		134,671
 76,074 - - - 76,074	 - - 30,200 30,200	- -	750 134,097 3,175 30,200 168,222
8,524	(29,730)		(33,551)
 -	 30,000 30,000		33,300 33,300
8,524	270		(251)
4,011	203,769		348,635
\$ 12,535	\$ 204,039	\$	348,384

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS JUNE 30, 2013

ASSETS:		Capital Facilities Fund		Capital Outlay Projects		Total Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds (See Exhibit C-1)
Cash in County Treasury	\$	241,417	\$	7,369	\$	248,786
Accounts Receivable	Ψ	194	Ψ	6	Ψ	200
Total Assets		241,611		7,375		248,986
	-			.,,,,,	===	
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE: Liabilities:						
Accounts Payable	\$	10,009	\$	-	\$	10,009
Total Liabilities	-	10,009	·	_	· 	10,009
Fund Balance: Committed Fund Balances Assigned Fund Balances Total Fund Balance		231,602		- 7,375 7,375		231,602 7,375 238,977
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances	\$	241,611	\$	7,375	\$	248,986

Total

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revenues:	 Capital Facilities Fund	(Capital Outlay rojects	F	Nonmajor Capital Projects unds (See exhibit C-2)
Other Local Revenue	\$ 6,535	\$	27	\$	6,562
Total Revenues	 6,535		27		6,562
Expenditures:					
General Administration	5,765		-		5,765
Plant Services	 60,229		-		60,229
Total Expenditures	 65,994		-		65,994
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues					
Over (Under) Expenditures	 (59,459)		27		(59,432)
Net Change in Fund Balance	(59,459)		27		(59,432)
Fund Balance, July 1	291,061		7,348		298,409
Fund Balance, June 30	\$ 231,602	\$	7,375	\$	238,977

	Other Supplementary Information
This section includ Board and not cor required by other er	des financial information and disclosures not required by the Governmental Accounting Standansidered a part of the basic financial statements. It may, however, include information which ntities.
	,



LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE JUNE 30, 2013

The Dehesa School District was established in 1876 and is comprised of approximately 19 square miles, located in San Diego County. There were no changes in the boundaries of the District during the year. The District is currently operating one elementary school and sponsors two charter schools.

Governing Board								
Name	Office	Term and Term Expiration						
Cindy White	President	Four Year Term Expires November 2014						
Jeff Royal	Vice President	Four Year Term Expires November 2016						
Karl Becker	Clerk	Four Year Term Expires November 2014						
Chuck Husky	Member	Four Year Term Expires November 2014						
Derek Voth	Member	Four Year Term Expires November 2016						
	Administration							
	Janet M. Wilson Superintendent/Principal							
	Gary Hobelman Business Manager							

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

	Second Perio	od Report	Annual R	eport *
	Original	Revised	Original	Revised
Elementary:				
Kindergarten	34.17	34.17	37.04	N/A
Grades 1 through 3	72.88	72.88	71.45	N/A
Grades 4 through 6	67.53	67.53	67.71	N/A
Grades 7 and 8	27.97	27.97	28.06	N/A
Home and hospital	0.92	0.92	0.90	N/A
Special education	2.13	3.43	2.55	N/A
Elementary totals	205.60	206.90	215.84	N/A
ADA totals	205.60	206.90	215.84	N/A

^{*} N/A-There were no audit revisions to the Annual attendance report.

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the district. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of state funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs.

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

	1982-83 Actual	1982-83 Adiusted &	1986-87 Minutes	1986-87 Adjusted &	2012-13 Actual	Number of Days Traditional	Number of Days Multitrack	
Grade Level	Minutes	Reduced	Requirement	Reduced	Minutes	Calendar	Calendar	Status
Kindergarten	34,905	33,935	36,000	35,000	59,122	181	-	Complied
Grade 1	47,505	46,185	50,400	49,000	56,407	181	-	Complied
Grade 2	47,505	46,185	50,400	49,000	56,407	181	-	Complied
Grade 3	47,505	46,185	50,400	49,000	56,407	181	-	Complied
Grade 4	55,245	53,710	54,000	52,500	56,407	181	-	Complied
Grade 5	55,245	53,710	54,000	52,500	56,407	181	-	Complied
Grade 6	55,245	53,710	54,000	52,500	65,355	181	-	Complied
Grade 7	N/A	N/A	54,000	52,500	65,355	181	-	Complied
Grade 8	N/A	N/A	54,000	52,500	65,355	181	-	Complied

Districts, including basic aid districts, must maintain their instructional minutes at either the 1982-83 actual minutes or the 1986-87 requirements, whichever is greater, as required by Education Code Section 46201. This schedule is required of all districts, including basic aid districts.

The district has received incentive funding for increasing instructional time as provided by the Incentives for Longer Instructional Day. This schedule presents information on the amount of instruction time offered by the district and whether the district complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46206.

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

General Fund	Budget 2014 (See Note 1)		2013		2012		2011
General und	 (000 14010 1)		2010		2012		2011
Revenues and other financial sources	\$ 2,885,233	\$_	3,153,856	\$_	3,080,278	\$_	2,788,958
Expenditures, other uses and transfers out	 2,913,002		3,007,794		3,039,722		2,856,811
Change in fund balance (deficit)	 (27,769)		146,062	<u></u>	40,556	_	(67,853)
Ending fund balance	\$ 557,478	\$_	585,247	\$_	439,185	\$_	398,629
Available reserves	\$ 260,907	\$_	291,409	\$	258,488	\$_	392,629
Available reserves as a percentage of total outgo	 93.0%		9.7%	-	9.4%	<u></u>	13.7%
Total long-term debt	\$ 2,679,739	\$_	2,812,012	\$	38,993	\$_	19,484
Average daily attendance at P-2	 206		207		215		195

This schedule discloses the district's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the district's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

The general fund balance has increased by \$118,765 over the past three years. The fiscal year 2012-13 budget projects a decrease of \$26,769. For a district this size, the state recommends available reserves of at least 3% of general fund expenditures, other uses and transfers out.

Long-term debt has increased by \$2,785,675 over the past three years.

Average daily attendance (ADA) has increased by 45 over the past three years.

Notes:

- 1 Budget 2014 is included for analytical purposes only and has not been subjected to audit.
- 2 As described in Note A to these financial statements, for purposes of reporting in conformity with GASB Statement No. 54, the District's Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay (Fund 17) was included with the General Fund. The above Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis contains only the financial information of the General Fund.

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

		General Fund	Special Reserve Fund
June 30, 2013, annual financial and budget report fund balances	\$	585,247	\$ 508,527
Adjustments and reclassifications:			
Increasing (decreasing) the fund balance:			
GASB # 54 required inclusion with general fund	•	508,527	 (508,527)
Jun e 30, 2013, audited financial statement fund balances	\$	1,093,774	\$ -
		.ong-Term Liabilities	
June 30, 2013, long-term liabilities on form Debt	\$	45,061	
Adjustments and reclassifications:			
General obligation bond understatement		2,499,852	
Bond premium understatement		216,366	
Accreted interest understatement		3,672	
OPEB obligation understatement	,	47,061	
Net adjustments and reclassifications		2,766,951	
June 30, 2013 long-term liabilities on Government Wide Statement of Net Position	\$	2,812,012	

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balances of all funds and the total liabilities balance of the general long-term debt account group as reported on the SACS report to the audited financial statements. Funds that required no adjustment are not presented.

TABLE D-5

DEHESA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

The following charter schools are chartered by Dehesa School District.

Charter Schools	Included In Audit?
Dehesa Charter School (#419)	No
Diego Hills Charter School (#1088)	No
The Heights Charter School (#1488)	No

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Federal Grantor/ Pass-Through Grantor/ Program Title	Federal CFDA Number	Pass-Through Entity Identifying Number		Federal penditures
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Direct Program: Indian Education	84.060		ው	0.407
Passed Through State Department of Education:			\$	9,407
Title I *	84.010	14329		17,986
Special Education Local *	84.027	10115		359,078
Special Education IDEA Local * Special Education Mental Health *	84.027A 84.027A	13682 14468		4,574 434
Impact Aid - P.L. 81.874 *	84.041	-		110,034
Special Education IDEA Preschool *	84.173	13430		2,572
Special Education Preschool Staff Development *	84.173A	13431		18
Safe and Drug Free Schools	84.186	14347		383
Innovative Education	84.298	14354		1,400
Title II Technology *	84.318	14334		122
Title VI Rural and Low Income Schools	84.358	14356		29,483
Title III Immigrant Education	84.365	15146		200
Title III LEP	84.365	14346		3,188
Title II Teacher Quality Total Passed Through State Department of Education	84.367	14341		7,574
Total U. S. Department of Education				537,046 546,453
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE Passed Through State Department of Education:				
School Breakfast Program *	10.553	13526		10,210
National School Lunch Section 11 * National School Lunch Section 4 * Total Passed Through State Department of Education Total U. S. Department of Agriculture TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS	10.555 10.555	13396 13391		7,674 35,665 53,549 53,549
TO THE ENTERDITION TO SELECT ANALOG			Φ	600,002

^{*} Indicates clustered program under OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Dehesa School District and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, *Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations*. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose financial statements.



Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP

CPAs and Advisors 218 W. Douglas Ave El Cajon, CA 92020

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and On Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Board of Trustees Dehesa School District El Cajon, California

Members of the Board of Trustees:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Dehesa School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Dehesa School District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 30, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Dehesa School District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Dehesa School District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Dehesa School District's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 2013-1 through 2013-4 to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Dehesa School District's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards* and which are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as items 2013-2 through 2013-5.

Dehesa School District's Response to Findings

Wilkinson Habley King & Co., LLP

Dehesa School District's responses to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Dehesa School District's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

El Cajon, California January 30, 2014

Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP

CPAs and Advisors 218 W. Douglas Ave El Cajon, CA 92020

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

Board of Trustees Dehesa School District El Cajon, California

Members of the Board of Trustees:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Dehesa School District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the *OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement* that could have a direct and material effect on each of Dehesa School District's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. Dehesa School District's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Dehesa School District's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, *Audits of States, Local* Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Dehesa School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Dehesa School District's compliance.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Special Education

As described in item 2013-4 in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Dehesa School District did not comply with requirements regarding Allowable Costs, Cost Principles and Other Compliance Requirements that are applicable to its Special Education Program. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for Dehesa School District to comply with the requirements applicable to that program

Qualified Opinion on Special Education

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, Dehesa School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on Special Education for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Programs

In our opinion, Dehesa School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its other major federal programs identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Dehesa School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Dehesa School District's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Dehesa School District's internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiences and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2013-4 to be a significant deficiency.

Dehesa School District's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Dehesa School District's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

El Cajon, California January 30, 2014

Wilkinson Hadley King & Co., LLP

Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP

CPAs and Advisors 218 W. Douglas Ave El Cajon, CA 92020

Independent Auditor's Report on State Compliance

Board of Trustees Dehesa School District El Cajon, California

Members of the Board of Trustees:

Report on State Compliance

We have audited the District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies 2012-13, published by the California Education Audit Appeals Panel that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District's state programs identified below for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

Management's Responsibility for State Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its state programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each applicable program as identified in the State's audit guide, Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies 2012-13 published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State's audit guide Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies 2012-13 published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. Those standards and audit guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the state programs noted below. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District's compliance with those requirements.

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine the District's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

Description	Procedures In Audit Guide	Procedures Performed
Attendance Accounting:		
Attendance Reporting	6	Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments	3	Yes
Kindergarten Continuance	3	Yes
Independent Study	23	N/A
Continuation Education	10	N/A

Instructional Time:		
School Districts	6	Yes
County Offices of Education	3	N/A
Instructional Materials, General Requirements	8	Yes
Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers	1	Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries	1	Yes
Early Retirement Incentive	4	N/A
GANN Limit Calculation	1	Yes
School Accountability Report Card	3	Yes
Juvenile Court Schools	8	N/A
Class Size Reduction (Including Charter Schools):		
General Requirements	7	Yes
Option One	3	Yes
Option Two	4	N/A
Only One School Serving Grades K-3	4	Yes
After School Education and Safety Program:		
General Requirements	4	N/A
After School	5	N/A
Before School	6	N/A
Charter Schools		
Contemporaneous Records of Attendance	1	N/A
Mode of Instruction	1	N/A
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study	15	N/A
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction	3	N/A
Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based	4	N/A

The term "N/A" is used above to mean either the District did not offer the program during the current fiscal year or the program applies to a different type of local education agency.

Opinion on State Compliance

In our opinion, Dehesa School District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that are applicable to the statutory requirements listed in the schedule above for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Other Matters

The results of our audit procedures resulted in an instance of noncompliance with the statutory requirements for programs noted above, which is required to be reported in accordance with the State's audit guide, *Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies 2012-13*, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel and which is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2013-5.

Dehesa School District's Response to Findings

Dehesa School District's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Dehesa School District's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Wilkinson Hadley King & Co., LLP El Cajon, California

January 30, 2014



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

A. Summary of Auditor's Results

1.	Financial Statements					
	Type of auditor's report issued:		<u>Unm</u>	<u>odified</u>		
	Internal control over financial reporting:					
	One or more material weaknesses	identified?	_X_	Yes		No
	One or more significant deficiencie are not considered to be material v			Yes	_X_	None Reported
	Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?		Yes	_X_	No	
2.	Federal Awards					
	Internal control over major programs:					
	One or more material weaknesses	identified?		Yes	_X_	No
	One or more significant deficiencie are not considered to be material v		_X_	Yes		None Reported
	Type of auditor's report issued on comp for major programs:	oliance	Qual	ified		
	Any audit findings disclosed that are rec to be reported in accordance with sect of Circular A-133?		_X_	Yes		No
	Identification of major programs:					
	CFDA Number(s)	Name of Federal P	rogram	or Cluster		
	84.173, 84.173A 84.027, 84.027A	Special Education	Cluster			
	84.041	Impact Aid				
	Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:	ween	\$300	,000		
	Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?		_X_	Yes	*****************	No

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

3.	State	Awai	ds

Any	audit	findings	disclosed	that	are	required	to	be			
repo	rted in a	accordan	ce with Sta	andar	ds an	d Proced	ures	for			
Audi	ts of Cal	lifornia K-	12 Local E	ducati	on Ag	gencies?		_	<u>X</u>	Yes	 No
Туре	of audi	tor's repo	rt issued or	n com	pliand	се					
for s	state pro	ograms:						1	Unmo	dified	

B. Financial Statement Findings

Finding 2013-1 (30000) Associated Student Body Funds

Criteria or Specific Requirement

Determine whether internal controls are in place over student body funds that will ensure that all student body receipts collected and disbursements paid are properly documented and that all proper transaction processes are being followed.

Condition

In our review of student body receipts we noted that at the time cash is collected only one individual signs the report verifying the amount collected.

Questioned Costs

None

Recommendation

We recommend that the District adopt procedures that require two individuals are always present when counting cash receipts and that both individuals sign and date the report to verify the amount collected.

LEA's Response

The District has implemented a Money Transmittal Form requiring two signatures. When counting cash receipts both individuals will sign and date the form.

Finding 2013-2 (30000)

Bank Account Reconciliations

Criteria or Specific Requirement

Dertermine that controls are in place to safeguard and properly maintain cash accounts of the District.

Condition

In our review of the District cash accounts we noted bank account reconciliations are not being prepared for any account on a monthly basis.

Questioned Costs

None

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Recommendation

We recommend the District adopt procedures which require that all bank accounts be reconciled to the bank statements on a monthly basis.

LEA's Response

Bank accounts have been reviewed for 2012-13 and starting in July 2013 all bank accounts are being reconciled on a monthly basis.

Finding 2013-3 (30000)

Local Revenue

Criteria or Specific Requirement

Determine that controls are in place to properly account for all local revenue receipts and to ensure that all local revenue is properly deposited into bank accounts.

Condition

In our testing of local revenue we noted that the District is not using cash transmittal forms for local revenue collected in the child devleopment fund and the cafeteria fund.

Questioned Costs

None

Recommendation

We recommend the District adopt procedures which require the use of a cash transmittal form for local revenue to document the amount of cash collected and transmitted to the business office. We also recommend that the transmittal form be signed by both the party collecting the revenue and the party receiving the revenue.

LEA's Response

The District has implemented a Money Transmittal Form requiring two signatures. When counting cash receipts both individuals will sign and date the form.

C. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2013-4 (50000)

Federal Allowable Costs/Cost Principles

Federal Program Information

Special Education Cluster CFDA #84.173, 84.173A, 84.027, 84.027A

Federal Grantor

U.S. Department of Education

Pass-Through Grantor

State Department of Education

Criteria or Specific Requirement

Determine that the District has documented salaries charged to federal programs in accordance with OMB Circular A-87. Employees working under a single program or cost objective must have their salaries documented semi-annually and employees working under multiple federal programs or cost objectives must have their wages supported by personnel activity reports.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Condition

In our review and testing of federal time certifications of employees charged to federal programs we noted that the District did not have semi-annual certifications or personnel activity reports on file to document the time charged to any of the federal programs included in the Special Education Cluster.

Questioned Costs

The total questioned costs are \$137,991 which is 100% of the salaries and benefits charged to the federal programs included in the Special Education Cluster.

Recommendation

Establish procedures to ensure that all salaries and wages charged to federal programs or cost objectives have proper semi-annual time certifications or personnel activity reports on file. Employee's salaries charged to federal programs should be reviewed and monitored on a montly basis to ensure proper time certification is evident.

LEA's Response

The has developed and implemented monthly personal activity reports for employees working under multiple federal programs and a semi-annual form for employees working under a single program.

D. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2013-5 (10000) Attendance

Criteria or Specific Requirement

Determine that the Second Period and Annual attendance reports submitted to the California Department of Education reconcile to the District's supporting records based on the guidelines and provisions under Education Code Sections 46000 and 46303.

Condition

In our review of the P2 second period attendance report submitted to the California Department of Education, we noted that the special education ADA listed on line A-9 did not agree to the supporting documentation. The ADA reported to the California Department of Education was understated by 1.3 ADA.

Questioned Costs

Understatement of 1.3 ADA on the P2 second period average daily attendance report which calculates to approximately \$6,590 in additional state apportionment due to the District.

Recommendation

Amend the P2 second period attendance report to include the understated special education ADA on line A-9. Implement procedures to ensure ADA reported to the state reconciles to supporting documentation for all future periods in order to receive the maximum apportionment due from the state.

LEA's Response

The P2 attendance report for 2012-13 has been amended. Before submission, attendance reports will be reviewed to ensure it reconciles with supporting documents.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Finding/Recommendation

Current Status

Management's Explanation
If Not Implemented

Finding 2012-1

Attendance

We noted that attendance rosters were being signed several weeks after the end of the actual attendance week.

Implement procedures to ensure all attendance class rosters are signed on a timely basis.

Implemented